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Argiva at a glance

We live In an always on, always connectad world Millons of people depend daly on a continuous stream of
nfarmation, education, entertainment and conversation

As the UK's leading communications tnfrastructure and media services company, we provide much of the
infrastructure behind telewision, radio, salellite and wireless communications in the UK Our engineers led the largest
broadcast engineering project in UK history with the successful completion of the switch over from analogue to digilal
TV in 2812

We provided the transmission capability for the UK Government's first budget broadcast in 1928 We were behind the
first satellite TV tests in 1978, and other ‘firsts’ including the world's first digital lerrestnal TV launch in 1598 and the
world's first outsourced mobile phone network in 2001

We continue to build on our pioneerng hantage and to grow our people, technology and capabiliies We work hard to
ensure we are trusted by our customers With increasingly ingenious and smarnt ways of working, wa aim to ensure
ther communicatien s efficient

Major broadcasters, such as the BBC, ITV and BSkyB, as welt as independent radio groups, depend on us to deliver
their programs to their viewers and listeners We also provide the infrastructure allowing connectivity for lsading UK
mobile network operators and many emergency sarvices operators We distnbuta content and data to homes across
the length and breadth of the UK and keep Bntish troops ovarseas in touch with their favounte football teams via live
Sky Sporis feeds

We also have a smaller presence in lreland, mainland Europe, USA and Asia For example, we provide satellite
distnbution services for Turner Broadecasting System, Inc in both the US and Hong Kong, for France’s leading media
company Canal+ Group and our digital and setefite TV services keep the news flowing for the intemationally
renowned Al Jazeera Network

Group Highlights

S {2013: €E1.7bn) -~

(2043: £5.8bn)

A

Terrestrial
Broadcast

Over 1,400 DTT
and radio
transmission
sites covering
98.5% of the
population

Our People

Hotder of Investurs
in Peaple “Gold
Awearad”

2,002 employees

{2013, 1,90¢)

Digital
Platforms

2 out of the 3
commercial DTT
mulliplexes and

2 new T2 HD

enabled
multiplexas

Customer
Satisfaction
73% of our
CUSIOMAIS SAY
we help them
prosper aivd
succeed

(2073 67%)

Satellite and
Media

Ownershipof 5
teleports and c 80
sateliite uplink
dishes

Accreditations

Including:

1SO 18001
OHSAS180013
1SO270M

Telecoms

Leading
independent site
share provider
- c.8,600 active
licensed sites
- ©. 24,000 WiFi
access points

Our
Reliability

Combined TV
Network
Avaitability of
99.655%

Metering
Mi2mM

Estabiishing 2
naetwork of c. 400
sites to provide

toverage o
¢9.3m premises

Awards

2014 Telepor
Operator of the
Year Award

Argqiva Brogdcast Holdings Limiled




Arqiva Broadcast Holdings Limited (05254001)
Annual Report ang Consolidated Financial Statements - Year ended 30 June 2014

Chairman’s statement

Durning the past year, we have been nvesting significant rescurces in pursuit of our revenue growth targets and our
business transformation programme aimed at delivening a higher quality of service {0 our customers We have won a
number of major contracts which will defiver future revenue growth, we have conlinued to develop a range of
products designed to meet the evolving needs of our customers, and expanded our capabilttes in the fast-growing
WiFi and machine-to-machine sectors

Financla! Results

Qur financial results reflect the transstion that we are making Qverall, we grew our revenues by 1% to £825 8m, with
growth coming from Telecoms, Digital Platforms and Smart Metenng The growih from these acliviies was largely
offset by a fall in one-off Terrestrial Broadcast project revenues, where we completed a number of major projects in
the pnor year The mmpact on gross margin of the revenue reduction in our Sateilite business has been hmited as
capacity velumes have also reduced

Cur EBITDA was 2% lower than 2013 at £406 6m, with 2 lower average grass margm due to the reduction In one-off
Terrestnal Broadcast project revenuss, and higher operating expenses as a result of growth investments and
geanng-up to deliver the contracts won during the year

Key contract wins and other highlights

Dunng the year, Arqiva won a number of significant contracts across all of our business units, and renewed long
term contracts with some of our key customers, demonstrating the positive impact of the changes the business has
made in recent years We increased our contracted order book from £5 6bn to £6 3bn, and have also made key
mvestments to support future revenue growth Highhghts include the following

+  Smart Metering / Machine-to-Machine ("Smart Metenng (M2M)')

o The Smarl Metenng North region contract, @ 15 year contract awarded by the Data and
Communications Company on behalf of the Government to provide smart metenng
communicabions for gas and electnoity meters i approximately 93 milhon homes and small
businesses in Scotland and narthern England

¢ An exclusive distribution agreement with SIGFOX, a leading intermational Intemet of Thinga ('loT)
machine to machine network provider Under the deal, Arqiva wili build a national narrowband foT
communications network using SIGFOX lechnology on a staged basis, starting with ten major UK
ciies

s Terrestnal Broadcast
o A naw contract lo prowide all BBC radio transmisston services (running for 17 years for the Digital
Audio Broadcasting ({DAB’) networks and seven years for the analogue services} The Group will
continue to support exsting FM and AM services as well as extending and enhancing DAB
coverage with new infrastructure
o Awarded the 12-year contract for prowiding network access and managed transmission services
for Local TV to 19 hugh population areas of the UK

« Satelita and Media
o A global satellite distnbution and play-out agreement with Tumer Broadcasting across Europe,
Middle East, Africa { EMEA') and Asia Paclfic (APAC’) With the establishment of our new office In
Hong Kong, the deal puts in place the foundgatons for our growth plans in the Asian market

+  Digttal Platforms

o We were awarded the licence by Ofcom to build and operate two new T2 muluiplexes n the 600
MHz spectrum band in order to increase the amount of HD programming on Freeview This licence
runs to 31 December 2026, with a minimum term to 31 December 2018

o Secunng new channel sales on the sxisting natronal mulliplexes has taken longer than imtially
anticipated, a number of customer contracts have now been signed and further tnals are expected
to be convered mto contracts m the forthcoming year

o We acquired Capablue Limiled, a provider of end-to-end software development and muliscreen
solutions to broadcasters increasing our ability to provide content on muttipte platforms

« Telecoms
o A new 10 year site share contract with Comarstone Telecommunications Infrastructure Ltd ('CTIL")
and its parents - Telefonica O2 and Vodafona
o A 4 year contract to provide wholasale WIFi senices to Virgin Media
e We continued to build cut WiF1 access points, having won distnbution nghts across a number of
the London Boroughs and i many UK arports We have circa 24,000 WiFi access points meaning
we are now one of the largest providers in the UK

Argiva Broadcast Holdings Lamiled
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Real progress an transformation of the business

To support the Group in achieving its targeted revenue growth and improve operational performance and customer
satisfaction, we have completed a dwisional re-organisation durning the year The new structure, with enhanced
vertical integration, ensures greater accountability for each of our busmess urts We also created our Smart
Metenng (M2M) business urit to focus on defivery of the new 15 year North region contract and pursue the
oppartunities of this rapldly growing new business sector

Duning the final quarter of the year, the results of both our employes and customer satisfaction surveys have shown
a strong improvement on the previous year, althaugh there 1s skl more for us to do to reach the levels to which we
aspire

Extending the Greup's debt maturity profile

We have continued to issue new long-term debt instruments In order to refinance our 3-year and 5-year term bank
facities well ahead ¢f thelr expiry, and have thus extended our average debt maturity from 6 years to 9 years and
diversified our sources of unding

We signed two ten year term loans - £180 Om from institutional mvestors, and £180 Om from the European
Investment Bank (EIB'), and we 1ssued a £164 O0m 16 year fixed rate public bond The proceeds of these
transactions were used to fully repay the 3-year bank facility and make a part repayment of the 5-year bank facility
that we put in place at refinancing in February 2013

In July, after the year-end, we compleled a further £300 Om US pnivate placement, following on from our earlier
successful £400 Om transaction in this market during June 2013 As a result, at the date of signing we now only have
£353 5m of the ongina) £1 Bbn bank facilities laft to refinance ahead of their matunty in 2018 We remain committed
to maintamning a stable long term investment grade financing structure that meets the needs of the Group

Outlook

Arqiva continues 1o make progress on its business transformation snd stated aims of growing a financlally successful
business, helping cur customers prosper and succeed, and being a greal place to werk We have signed some
significant contracts which have increased our order book and will underpin our revenue growth for 2015 and
beyond

As well as maximising the value we generate from our stable, long-term contracied core broadcast and telecoms
wfrastruclure businesses, we confnue to pursue new revenue opporturities, such as i the machme-to-machine
communications space, bulding on our core infrastructure and engineenng skills

We will continue to Invest significant capital over the comung years, and will remain vigilant as to the level of our
operating costs in order fo dehver meaningful earnings growth

We continue to work with the key parties in our industnes, including government and regulatory badies, to maintain
the excellent relatonships we have bullt with stakeholders, customers and suppliers alike, to ensure that Argiva
continues to aclively play its role in shaping key decisions, and influencing trends in our markets

Argiva continues to engage with Ofcom and other inlernational govemment agencies to influence, in particular,
decisions made on the fulure allocation of spectrum, wilh a view to ensuning the opumal allocatian of spectrum is
reached across our markats, and (o protect free to air broadeasting Changes to the allocation of spectrum may lead
to significant project engineenng opportumbies in future years

Argiva has made good progress towards its goals in the past year, and the next financial year presents considerable
opportunity for the Group to continue that progress as It looks to embrace the emerging products, opportunities and
markels

| wauld personally like to thank everyone at Arqiva for therr dedication dunng the past year The progress we have
made has only been possible with the contribution of the 2,000 peaple nght across the business working together

Petar Shore
Chairman

{7 September 2014

Argiva Broadcest Holdmgs Limitad
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Strategic report

The Directors, in prepanng this Strategic report, have comphed with section 414 of the Companies Act 2006 This
Strategic report has been prepared for Argiva Broadcast Holdings Limited and its subsidrary undertakings as a whole
('the Group")

Our Business

The Group owns and cperates a portfolio of communications infrastructure and provides felevision and radio
transmission services, tower site rental to mobile network operators, media services and radioc communications in
the United Kingdom {‘UK') and overseas We live in an always on, always connected world Millions of people
depend daily on a continuous stream of information, education, entertatnment and conversation As mare and more
individuals, companies and public services organisations seek lo connect safely and securely to one another, we am
o be central to every vital connection they make QOur services already touch the lives of virtually every person in the
UK every day

Our values - being ingentous, straightforward and collaborative - am to ensure that we all go the extra mile to help
our customers reach therr customers and audiences

Our Business Units

Dunng the past year the Group has restructured its business into five customer facing business units (as depicted
below) supported by the Technology business unit and a central Corporate function The previous Business
Operations division was aligned into the other business units dunng the year The business urits within tha Group
comprise

Terrestrial
Bdst

Sateflite and
Medi

The notes to the financial statements show the realignment of headcount (see note § on page 37) resulting from this
reorgantsation.

Arqiva Broadcasl Holdings Limied
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Terrestnal Broadcast 1s the sole provider of transmission services and infrastructure for alt UK terrestnal TV
broadeasters including BBC, 1TV and C4, who reach 20 milicon homes and cover 88 5% of the UK poputation [t also
owns and operates over 90% of the radw transmission towers for terrestnal broadcasting in the UK and is the
operator of the only commaercial national digitat radio multiplex

Satellite and Media owns and operales teleports at key locations in the UK, as well as owning an international
terrestnal fibre network, media facilites and teasing satsllite capacity These enable the Group to provide customers
with a comprehensive range of services to deliver their data. broadcasts and media services internationally

Digital Platforms owns and operates two of the three main national commercial digital terrastnal TV multiplexas (cut
of a total of six multiplexes), plus two new DVB-TZ multiplexes (for additional services inciuding HD on Freeview),
used for transmission of Digital Termrestnal Television (DTT’) services in the UK Digtal Platforms enables major
media compantes to bnng thewr TV and radio services lo 20 million homes with access o the Freeview platform

Telecoms service the mabile communicabong, public safety, local government and commeraal markets Arqiva is
the largest independent provider of towers in the UK, which are licensed to national mobile network operators
(MNOs") and other wireless network operators With its own spectrum, the Group has the strategic capability to
provide complete mobile communications networks including backhaul links The Group's WiFt infrastructure
business 1s one of the UK's largest WiF) hotspot providers

Smart Metering/Machine to Machine (M2M) 13 the Group's newest business unit, set up to bulld en Argiva's
succass n winning the 15 year smant metering contract in the North of England and Scofland and to pursue the
wider opparturibies in this space The smart metening contract involves building a new smart network and delivening
the energy smart metenng communications service far Scotland and the north of England, as well as managing
engagement with the energy industry and other key stakeholders The business unit is pursuing new busmess
opportuniies in related smart and M2M markets, including many fast developing areas such as smart waler
metering, smart grids and a wide set of other potential M2M applications, including the Internet of Things ('loT")

The Technology division supports the operational infrastructure, including monilonng and maintenance services for
the whote of the Group, therr focus being on service, efficiency and new technology

Central Carporate functions compnse Strategy & Business Development, Finance, Legal & Commercial, and People
& Organsation The Group has invested in strengthening these areas m recent years in order to better support the
growth agenda of our business

The Group's radio and TV broadcast operations are regulated by the Cffice of Communications (Cfcom’) on behalf
of tha wholesale broadcast customers The Terrestnal Broadcast business unit 1s impacted by this regulatton The
Satellite, Telecoms, [hgital Piatforms and Smarl Metenng (M2M) business unils are classified as non-
regulated Technology and the corporale functions provide support services across all business units

Our business environment

The Group 1s the sole owner and operator of the UK's nationwide terrestral TV infrastructure and the major owner
and operator of the UK's radio infrastructure The Group's activities have been key to the technological evolution
from analpgue to digital based services and are cntical to all terrastrial TV and radio broadcasters The switchover
of the UK's terrestnal TV system to a high power digital transmission service (the Digtal Switch-Over ~ ‘DSO")
together wilh network consolidation and technologlical change within the mobile communications sector ara key
market changes which continue to impact the Group's existing businesses

The successful completion of DSO has demonstrated the capability of the Group to deliver large scale complex
infrastructure projects on time and under budget, and while the construction of this high power digital network has
been financed by Arqiva it 15 supporied by long term contracts with key broadcasters, includming the BBC, that have
17 - 20 years to run and contribute around £4 billion to the contracted farward order book of the Group

The Group holds spectrum kicences for two of the three main national commercia!l digital terrestnal TV multiplexes (to
2026) plus two new T2 multiplexes (also to 2026), selling space for channel programming on the Freeview platform
Argwa has continued to run at high levels of utihsation with customers including Film4 and UKTV Channel contracts
vary in length but ara usually between three and five years duration Advancements in compression technology (1 e
increasing the number of vides streams, or channels, per multiplex) continue to prowide opportunities for additional
revenues from new capacity for digitel terrestrial TV channels Whilst securing channe! sales has taken longer than
Initially anticipated, a number of trials are expecied to be converted into contracts m the forthicoming year

Arqiva's satelite infrastruclure prowvides excellent tavels of connectwily, reliabiity and secunty Arqiva owns,
manages and operaies teleports and media hubs at key locations, multiplexes and an interpational fibre network

The Group was proud to recene the 2014 Independent Teleport Operator of the Year award from the World Teleport
Association We are now a four-ime recipient of this respacted award

The Group is the UK's largest independent provider of wiraless towers which are cntical to MNOs' contractual
ahligations to provide natonal coverage Revenue from the Group's tower portfolio is secured by contracts with all of

Argiva Broadeast Haldings Limited
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the large UK mobile operators Planning restnctions create high barners ta entry The recent release of 4G spectrum
for use In the mobite market 15 alse expected to dnve growth 1n revanue

Argva continues to work closely with the MNOs as they seek to reduce thew cosls by network consolidation The
Group 1s a key supplier n this market, with long term contracts with all the UK MNOs We aim to ensure we are at
the heart of the mohile operators’ consolidation plans Growth in smartphones and mobie enabled devices along
with faster download speeds has led to a significant increase in the demand for mobile data senices and hence the
demand for WiFI, and In the future, small cells

Argiva's infrastructure busimess 1s capital mtensive, and the time lag beiween preduct development, contract award,
capltal investmen! and revenue generation can be considerable Argiva benefits from having a significant number of
long term contracts with its customers and a number of these include automatic RPI iinked increases

Financial position, performance and key performance indicators (‘KPls’)

For the twelve months ended 30 June 2014, tunaver for the Group was £825 Bm, an Increase (0 6%) from £820 8m
In the sarme period in the prior year 2014 saw the first recognition of revenue for the smart melenng solution design
(for which the cash will be collected in later years as per the coniract terms), and also saw growth within Telecomns
related to new business areas such as WiFy, along with some stgruficant installabon services activity in the final
quarler Growth was also seen within Digital Platforms which was dnven by the increased run rate from additonat
channel capacity available following the spectrum clearance project and other engmeenng developments to
compress channels and video content This growth was partially offset by a significant reduction n project ravenues
within Terrestnal Broadcast, particufary for B00MHz clearance, which ts now complete, and sales in Satellite and
Media where the Group has reduced activity or exited from several low margin businesses

EBITDA for the Group was £406 6m, representing a 2 4% decrease from £416 6m In the pnor year with a reduction
in ligh margin Terrestnal Broadcast projects reducing gross profit and increased operatng costs, due to the
investment in resources required to defiver our growth inhatives  Addibonally, withtn Satellite and Media, the Group
invested In operational infrastructure to support planned sales for the forthcoming financial year There has also
been significant activity on Smart Metenng as the network design stage nears completion, in anticipation of the
raligut in the next financial year

Profit on ordinary activiies before taxation and interest for the Group was £121 Om, represeniing a 2 7% decrease
from £124 4m n the prior year dnven by the comparable reduction in EBITDA Afier the recognition of costs
including interest on sharsholder foan notes (£215 2m (2013 £154 7m)) and exceptional financang costs incurred
through restructunng interest rate swaps (£112 3m (2013 nil)). the Group recorded a statutory loss for the year of
£503 7m (2013 £304 4m)

The Group recognised £120 5m (2013 £28 8m) of exceptiona) costs in the year This was primanly due to financing
costs (£112 3m) incurred through restructunng Interest rate swaps as part of the Group's strategy to replace its 3-
year and S-year term faciliies with a vanety of longer-term loans and bonds (see note 4 for further detalls)

The Group's net cash outflow on capital expenditure was £145 9m, compared to £121 9m in the pnor year (an
increase of 19 7%) The increase was principally as a result of spending in connection with new coniract wins such
as Smart Metenng, WiF1, Local TV, the new T2 Mulliplexes, Mobile Infrastruclura Project (‘MIP'), and Satelits
projects which will generate addittonal revenues and EBITDA in future penads

Our key performance indicators ('KPIs') reflect financial performance, the leve) of service provided to our
customers, and progress on major customer projects

Financial KPis

Company Objective KPI Definition

Success in bidding for key| Revenue Net of value added tax, and in accordance wath amounis

contracts to support our presented ss tumover in our financal statements

growth agenda

Increased lavel of| EBITDA Operating profit, before share of profit from joint

business profitability ventures and associates, profit or losses on the dispasal

(gromth in revenue, and of fixed assats, depraciation, amortisation, intarest and

‘f)ﬁ;i)en: management of exceptional tems but aRer non-nterest finance costs
(pnncipally bank charges)

Increased level of| Operating Cashfiow Cashflow from operating activities (after working capital

operating cashflow but before capital Investment), and other activities that

are not investing or finance related

Argiva Broadcast Holdings timited
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Financial KPI trend data for the last four finanaal years 1s shown below

KFI 30 June 2014 30 June 2013 30 June 2012 30 Junc 2011
Revenue £82568m £820 8m £8317m £826 am
EBITDA £406 6m £416 6m £401 2m £347 7m
Operating Cashflow £342 1m £349 0m £377 €m £269 8m

The busness unit revenus levels are shown below {the Smart Metenng {M2M) business unit was newly created
dunng 2014) The 2011 comparative has been excluded from the graphic below as the Group underwent sigruficant
re-alignment of its business units dunng the year ended 30 June 2012 and 1s therefore not comparable on 2
business umt basis

300 - e ———— = - e
I3
b=
a b om e — e —
20
E - » 2012
= & 2013
E e s e ———
L] 2014
5 e =~
SO <t S
Tersestrial Satellite and Digital Platforms Telecoms Smart Metering
Broadcast Media M2M

The Group targets medium-term EBITDA growth Our EBITDA growth 1s shown below and represents a 3-year
annualised growih rate of 5 3% since 2011

02011
02012
2013

2014

300 350 400 450
EBITDA £m

EBITDA for the Group was £406 6m, representing a 2 4% decrease from £416 6m mn the same period in the prior
year with reductions in high margin Terrestrial Broadcast projects reducing gross profit and increased operalng
costs, due to iInvestment in the Group's growth agenda to support new and future contract wins

A reconciliation of the reported EBITDA to the financial statements 1s provided below

Year ended Yaar encded Year ondad Year anded

30 June 30 June a0 June a0 Juns

2014 1013 2012 2014

£m £m e'm E'm

Operating profit before exceptional items 1261 1514 1475 1027

Depreciation of fixed assets 1226 1059 94 1 892

Impaimment of fixed assets - - 56 .

Amortisation 157 7 1591 1552 1554

Other (including loss/(profit) on disposal of fixed assets and non- 02z 02 {12) (04)
Interest finance costs principally bank charges)

EBITDA 408.6 416.8 401.2 477

Our operating cashflow has grown aver the 4 year period as a result of the increase m EBITDA, partially offset by
movements In working capital.

Arqlva Bioadcast Holtings Limited
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Non-financlal KPla

Cther significant KPIs for the Group are the level of network avadability across both TV and radio infrastructure
When significant engineenng projects are underway, such as DSO and smart metenng, the measurement of
milestones on these confracts also forms part of our KPIs

Company Objective KPI Definition
Consistently high service | Network Availabilty The total annua!l level of network avaifability across
levels provided to our Target 99 94% both TV and radio infrastructure as a % across all

customers, including multiplexes
service provided on third
party multiplexas

Daelvary on our customer

promises

KPls on certain of our significant engineenng projects
are outlined below

Milestones on key project
deliverables

Non-financial KPI trend data 1s shown below

KPI 30 June 2014 30 June 2013 30 June 2012
Own TV Multiplex 99 95% 99 99% 98 99%
Netwark Availatnlty

Combined Network 99 95% 99 99% 99 98%
Availability

Delivery on our customer promises (project milestones)-
The projects below represent key customer projects which began in the financial year

Projact Target Actual at 30 June 2014 Status

T2 multiplexes
- 50% National Coverage December 2013 Complete Achieved
- 72% Natonal Coverage June 2014 Cornplete Achieved

Local TV
- Build of 23 regional sites June 2014 Complete Achiaved
- Final site for complation in FY15 In line with Autumn 2014 On track

customer reguirements

Smart Metering (M2M) - Communications Service

Provider for the Narth ('CSP North')
. Solution Design Complete February 2014 Complete Achieved
- Service Management Framework June 2014 Complete Achisved
- 40% Network Coverage Aprid 2015 On track
- User Accaptance Testing Complate July 2015 On track
- B0% Network Coverage October 2015 On track
- 87 75% Network Covarage January 2017 On track
- 98 5% Network Caverage June 2020 On track

Subject to any contractual changes lo timetable at the
requesi of the Data and Communications Company
(pcc?

Arqwva Broadcast Holdings Limitad
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Analysis of the future development of the business

It 15 the intention of the Company (Arqiva Broadcast Holdings Limited} and the Group to continue to operate and
invest in communications infrastruciure, maximising value of the core businesses and to explore appropnate growth
cpportunittes which represent a strategic fit with our existing businesses and infrastruclure assels

Strategic pnorities

Dur key strategic pricrities are
» Growing a financially successful business,
+ Helping our customers prosper and succeed, and
« Bemng a great placa to work

The key steps management are taking to execute our strategy are as follows

« Maximising the value of each of the slrong core businesses — leveraging existing resources and
infrastructure to Increase turnover and cash flow through offering addiional services to existing and new
customers,

e Investing in the fulure of Digial Terrestnal Telewision ('DTTY) by supporting ventures such as YouView,
video on-demand services and the high defimiion capability on Freeview,

« Focusing on hugher margin products and exiing low margin markets e g the run-down of the wholesale
satellite business and fhe exit of the oulside broadcast and digital cinema businesses in our satellte
business unit,

» Improving processes to be more effictent and customer focused, and to optrmuse operational cost and
effictency,

« Putting the customer first in all that we do and measuning our success by regular feedback, Including the
annual customer survey, and

» Investing i our peaple, including mamntaining our Investors in People "Gold Award’

The Group has identified, and in same tases secured, a number of scalable growth opportunities to further leverage
Its existing infrastructure expertise and customer relationships and increase its entical rofe in the UK's infrastructure
network These include
+« New uses for existing infrastructure experbse such as,
o Smar Metenng
o Local TV
o the Government funded Mabile Infrastructure Project
o WiFiinfrastructure
s Additonal revenues from new capacity for digital terrestrial television channels dnven by advancements in
compression technology (1 e increasing the number of video streams or channels per multiplex),
s Switch Over from analogue radio to DAB,
= Increasing demand for wireless site capacity driven by the trend in increasing mabile data usage and
continued rall out of 3G and 4G mobile networks, and
« The acquisition of Capablue Limited (see below)

We continue to support and spansor key industry initiatives designed to strengthen the media and communications
sector We have remained the headine sponsors of the British Academy of Film & Television Ars (BAFTA’)
Telawvision Awards since 2012 We also cantinue our long-term sponscorship of the Arqiva Commercial Radio Awards,
the UK's biggest annual celebration of commercial radio

Acquisitions and disposals

The acquistion of Capablue Limited took place on 6 February 2014 Capablue Limited is a provider of end-to-end
software development and multiscreen solutions 1o broadcasters, TV platforms and brands These solutions enable
content to be distnbuted across the imtemet, allowing content providers to disinbute video conlent to any dewice or
screen (including smart mokile phones, tablets and games consoles) With the rapid growth of both high-speed
broadband and intemet-connected devices, significant opportunities are emerging to find new, complementary ways
to delwver and enhance content for consumers  This acquisition uriquely positions Argiva as the only provider with
the capability to offer linear and non-inear video distnbution across OTT, Satellite Direct to Home, and wa the
Intemet Following this acquisiion the Group has been proceeding with integration and develeping new
opportunities

In Aprtl 2014 the Group sold s digital cinema delwery network in the UK and Europe to a French-owned digial
cinema specralist, YMAGIS, to focus on other higher margin growth areas The Digtal Cinema business previously
generated circa £1 Om per annum of revenues i the Satelite and Media business unit

Major contract wins and developments

As reported In last year's financial statements, in September 2013 the Group signed a 15 year ceniract with the Data
and Communications Company to prowide smart metering communtcations for approximately 9 3 milkon homes and
small businesses in Scotland and northern England Tha contract became effective in December 2013 an complelion
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of financing commitments specific (o the contract Work 1s underway to build the network required to deliver the
service, and all DCC contract mulestanes due were achieved as at 30 June 2014

Since the award of the smart metenng contract for the North region, the Group has been working to develop a
position as a leading provider of machine-to-machine connectivity in April 2014, the Group signed a partnership deal
with SIGFOX whereby the Group will builld a national Internet of Things (loT") communication network on a staged
bas:s, starting with ten major UK ciies, using SIGFOX technology The new network will provide nationwide low-
power connectivity through an Ultira Narrow Band radio network between “things” (often referred to as machine-to-
machine communications or M2M)

Local TV 15 a govemment insiative, implemented by Ofcom with oversight from the BBC Trust, to establish local
television in the UK On 29 July 2013, Camux, the Multiplex operator icensee, awarded the Group a 12-year
contract, under which the Group will be responsible for bullding the sustainable infrastructure and subsequently
delivering Local TV across 19 high population areas of the UK by providing the pnmary transmission services,
including network access and managed transmission The first station went live m November 2013 in Gnmsby Local
TV in London was launched on 31 March 2014

The Satellite business secured new business wins with major tnternational customers including [TV, NBC, Tumer,
and Al Jazeera, among others, providing a variety of satellite services from its UK based facilities In December
2013, the Group entered into a strategic agreement with Turner Broadcasting across Europe, Africa (EMEA') and
Asia Pacific {APAC’) The dea! comas as parl of our growth plans in the Asian market, launching services in Hong
Kong in addition to its existing services in Singapore Building cn our satellite distnbution refationship with Tumer,
the Group plan to mvest in new technology \o provide an end-to-end service including uplink for third party
broadcasters

in August 2013, the Group won a tender for the proviston of all 88C radio transmission services under the BBC New
Radio Agreement ('BBC NRA') Under this contract, the Group will build further Digital Audio Broadcast ('DAB’)
infrastructure taking the BBC's national DAB network coverage to 97% of the UK population by the end of 2015 This
17 year contract will make a significant contnbution to our overall revenue and 1s a great example of maximising
value for existing customers

Our Digital Flatforms busmess was awarded the licence to establish two new T2 Muxes in the 800MHz spectrum
band This licence 1s to run o 2026 with the Government retaining an ophtion to break in 2018 The Group
commenced construchon of the new Freeview HD Mulliplex network In August 2013 and has now reached the target
70% population caverage Active discussions are underway with a number of Public Service Broadcasters (‘PSBs')
and commercial broadcasters regarding the carnage of addibonal HD channels from their portfolios

In Apnl 2014, the Group signed a 4 year contract to provide wholesale WiFi services to Virgin Medra The contract
will enable them to offer WiF1 services to ther customers This opportumity 1s part of the Group's strategy to dnve
growth from 1ts WiF1 business by extending its footprint and wholesale offenng to fixed (‘FNOs'), mobile (MNOs') and
mobile virtual network operators {MVNOs") The Group continues to work towards selling WiF1 services to Mobile
Network Operators (‘MNOs'} The Group now has circa 24,000 WiFi access points making us one of the largest
providers in the UK

in June 2014, the Group agreed a 10 year site share contract with Cornerstone Telecornmunications Infrastructure
Ltd (‘CTIL") and its parents Telefonica O2 and Vodafone The joint venture between Teleforica 02 and Vodafone
poaols both compantes’ netwark infrastructure and will create a shared gnd of 18,500 masts under the CTIL umbrelta,
which will represent an increase of more than 40% in points of presence for each operator

Financing Structure

In February 2013, the Group clased its refinancing raising funds from both bank faciiies and bond markets These
funds together with further funds advanced by the ABHL shareholders facilitaled the repayment of previous bank
faclities Cunng the past year, the Group has continued to 1ssue new long-term debt instrumenits to refinance the 3-
year and 5-year term faciibes At 30 June 2043 the Group had senior bank loans compnsing £400 Om 3-year term
faciites and E786 Om 5-year term facilities

Dunng January 2014, the Group completed a £180 Om term lean from institutional investors, the proceeds of which
were used to make a £180 Om part rapaymenl of the 3-year term bank facities This loan has an expected term of
10 years and is held by Argiva Financing No 1 Limited {AF1’).

In February 2014, the Group closed a £164 Om fixed rate public bond issue, with an expected maturity of 2030 Net
proceeds (£162 5m) from the 1ssuance were again used to repay 8 porion of the 3-year term bank facility borrowed
by Argiva Senior Finance Limited {'ASF’}

Dunng June 2014, the Group completed a loan of £180 Om from the European Investment Bank (‘E8’) borrowed by
AF1, with an expected term of 10 years The proceeds of this loan have been utiised to settle the remaining £57 5m
of the 3-year lerm bank faciity and £132 5m to make a part repayment of the 5-yaar term bank faciity

Arglva Braadcast Hoklings Limuted




Arqiva Broadcast Holdings Limited (05254001)
Annuat Repont and Consalidated Financia! Stalements - Year ended 30 June 2014

The 3-year facility was fully repaid in the year and £653 Sm of the § year facility was outstanding at 30 June 2014
Subsequent fo the year end, the Group concluded a new 15-year US Private Placement debt issue which rased
£300 Om to further pay down the S-year facility Following (his repayment, only £353 5m of the onginal £1 6bn 3 and
5 year bank debt barrowed in February 2013 remains

The Group has entered into interest rate swaps (nominal value £1,023 5m) and wnflaien swap agreements
(£1,312 5m) in aorder to hedge its interest rate and inflaton exposure The Group maintans a hedging policy to
manage interest rate nsk and to ensure the cerlainty of future interest cash flows Arqwa's interest rate swaps
convert variable rate debt mierest costs to fixed rate debt interest costs while inflatton swaps convert fixed interest
costs to RPi-inked costs, which fluctuate in line with the RPI index, as do a significant proporhon of the Group's
revenue contracts Further details of the transactions entered into dunng the year, their basis and strategy for use I1s
detaded within note 17

In December 201 3, as part of the Group's new smart metering contract we established two further facilities in Argiva
Smar Financing Limited (ASFL"), a Group company that sifs outside the mam WBS financing Group The Comms
Hub Recewvables Purchasing {CHuRP’) facility aliows the Group to bomow up to £30 Om, the Fee Facilty allows the
Group 1o borrow up to £1 6m At 30 June 2014 a balance of £0 5m has been drawn against the fee facity, this loan
has floating interest rates of LIBOR + 1 20% and is fully repayable on 30 June 2017 There were no drawdowns on
the CHuRP facllity as at 30 June 2014, this loan has floating interest rates which range from LIBOR + 1 20% to
LIBOR + 1 75% dunng the mitial six years of the facility, increasing lo LIBOR + 2 50% at the end of the agreement in
June 2026

Al 30 June 2014, and at the date of signing the financial statements, the Group's financing compnsed

Notes to the {unaudited) 30 June 2014 30 June 2013
. ’

suf:::::: 13 Septambar 2014 £m £'m
Shareholder financing
Sharsholder equity {share capital 19.20 969 5 969 5 Q69 5
and share premium) '
Sharehaldar loan noles 7 1,273 8 12738 1,273 %
22431 22433 2,242 4
Bank loans
Senior term debt 17
- 3 yaar tarm loans drawn in 2013 - - 400 ¢
- 5 year larm loans drawn in 2013 3535 6535 786 0
- New term loans with extended J700 370 -
matunly profite
723 6 1023 6 11860
Premium on Swap lssuance 17 2041 1036 .
Other loans
Senlor bonds 17 16125 13125 1,148 5
Junwor bonds 17 6000 6000 6000
Finance lease obligations 16,17 139 140 145
2,228 4 1,826 5 1,763 ¢
Total 5,3973 5,296 9 5,192 4

These financing instrurnents have certain financial covenants attached, pnncipally an interest cover ratto and a debt
leverage ratic The Group's fixed and other assels have been pledged as secunty under the lerms of the Group’s
external debt facilities (see note 28)

The Group continues to comply with all covenant requirements  Additonally, financing has been provided from the
ABHL sharsholders in the form of equity and sharaholder loan notes

Further details of the Group's debt faciihes are given in note 17 to the financia) statements
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Golng concern

On @ consolidated basis the Group has net habihites The Group adopls the going concern basis in preparing its
consolidatad financial statements based on future profit, cash flows and available faciilies, which lead the Directors
of the Company to be confident that the Group will have adequate resources to continue in operational exislence for
the foreseeable future The Group had a net cash inflow from operating activities of £342 1m in the year (2013
£349 Om} The Company is i a net asset pasition
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Risk management

Principal risks and uncertainties facing the business

The Group maintains a corporate nsk register which is reported to, and reviewad by, senicr management and the
Directars A selection of the key business nsks affecing the Group are set out balow together with a summary of the
Group’'s mitigating actrons, in addition the Group has long term contracts in place with 8 number of significant blue

chip customers which support the Group’s long term financial stability

Business
Unit

Description of
risk/uncertainty

Mitigation of risk/uncertainty

All Major Infrastructure network of  There is a dedicated Business Conlinuity Working Group which meels on a
satellte fallura causing regular basis to review plans and procedures in place and the provision of
multiple platform failures or disaster recovery services
service outages,

The Group's business continuity plans are tested to ensure that they are robust
and fit for purpasa and that there 15 the nght skills mix and knowledge within
_the Group

Terrestrial International decistons  In November 2012, Ofcom published an Ultra High Fraquency {UHF") Strategy

Breadeast regarding the future use ofthe  Statement confirming tis Intention to release 700 MHz for Mobile Braadband

and Digital 600 / 700MHz spectrum for | ee whiat ansunng 600 MHz band accessibility for D¥T, should the change in

Platfarms orr 700Mhz go shead post 2018 Ofcom published a consultation for the interim
The World Radio Conference U@ of the 500 MHz band for tamporary DTT multiplexes, for which Argiva was
2012 (WRC-12') signalied that  the successful applicant
countries may clear the T00Q
MHz band of OTT i The Group continues to engage with Ofcom and the broadcasters to ensure
preparation for future use by that Amiva and the television industry's needs are fully considered and
Mobile Broadband This would  sufficient spectrum is available for DTT (n addition, the Group are actively
rasult in the 600MHz spectrum  engaged in the {easibility study for the potential 700MHz clearance
cleared during DSCO having to  programme, working in partnership with Ofcom
be used for existng terrestrial
™

Terrastrial Interfference to  tenestrial  As part of the Group's engagement with Ofcom and the broadcasters, we will

Br:agca‘sll ::ﬂa:!caslh!rafn:glssiuns wi:h snsure thal Argiva and the television industry's needa are fully considered as

and Digital e launch o services in

Plztrn:rgns 200 MHz pari of these spectrum planning discussions
The mtroduction of White In additon, the Group has an cpen and regular dialogue with atB0Q (a
Space services i the UHF bredemark of Digital Mebile Spectrum Limded (DMSL') which is funded by and
band presents the rsk of represents the UK mobile operators who are launching 4G mobile seivices at
addtional interferenca ta DTT 800 MHz)

There 13 possible risk that the 35 Group is actively involved 1n Inals and discussions around mitigating any
DTT platform may sufler some  g;ch polential interference
| chum to other platforms

Terrastral Developmants in alternabve DTT relains the largast share of broadcast transmission in the UK, end

Broadcasl,  broadcast lechnologies, such  Connected TV remalns constrained by Fmied high speed broadband uptake

Satellte and  as broadband intemetl  and yariable reliabllty levals in addrion the Group has mitigated some of this

Media, and connected TV, whh:'h risk by Investing In YouView TV Limited, a joint venture formed tc develop and

Digital compelas agamnst the Group's

Platforms DT transmission business promote the DTT platform, together with ds development in Conneclt TV ~ a

hybrid Internet Protecol Television ((IPTV'YDTT offering

Telecoms The level of demand for Signdicant amounts of capital expenditure have been invested in developing
wireless communications and  the wireless communicabons infrastructure in the UK The Group monitors the
mmpact an demand for acce$$  gemand for mobile data which continues to grow and indications are that
to the Group's towers spectrum capacty, and antenna deployments, wili need to increase to cape

with this demand Tha Group conbinuas to closely moniter the development of
wiraless technology and network deplaymaent activities by MNOs

Telecoms Network  sharing  actvity The Group has secured long term contracts with all of the major UK MNOs,
amongst the MNOs including Everything Everywhera ('EE"), Telefonica and Vodafone

The Group's sies are predominantly located in rural and suburban areas Their
locaticn exclusivity and restncive planming regulations create significant
barrers to entry

The Group seeks lo protect itself by negobaling long term contracls where it
makes itself the focal point for consoldation, and faciitates the MNOs
cangoldation m raturn for lonp term revenue cerdainty
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Amgna's reputation as a result
of
= A major even! or incident
impacting our services
s Unumely delivery on
major projects
» Repsated unexpected
sarvice outages

Smart Delay in performance of gur Our contracts are worded such lhat the Group's nsk is rmitigated through
Metering contractual obligations brought  contractual reimbursements Qur contracis are structured into milestones such
(M2n) ::::‘::L by ‘::‘B' ”;‘t’:eg“’de; that we are accountable to aur stakeholders for our contractua! obligations and
siNg r co eyo
estimated contingencies our performance 13 managed accordingly
Future Dids are not won YVe belisve that our technology s highly adaplable and network capabilty s
leaving an under-utitsatton of unrivalled and therefare should future bids not be won, altemative customers
our technology and markets will be targeted
All Bad publicty damages The Group carefully engages with its customers to ensure that project

milestones are carefully managed and management regulary review the
progress status of al! projects

Through continuous measurement of operational KPls and addressing
shorifalls in performance through process excellence the nsk around service
reliability is carefully managed

The Group has achieved and maintained 1SO27001 certification regarding

s Secunty braach on Information secunty and holds period reviews of the securty environmant
networks
The Group has In place a crisis management plan for public relatons and
sxternal communtcations te provide suppart should there be any major events
This 15 regularty montored and reviewed

Corporate responsibility
Everything we do at Arqiva 1s guided by our values to go the extra mile to help our customers reach their customers
and audiences

We believe we have a role to play in shaping our dynamic industry It's what we've been doing for the last 80 years

We aclively engage with government, trade associations and other industry players as we know that to keep our
customers connectad we must continually work to identify and develep the ideas that will enable society’s wireless
digital future

Qur Purpose is the reason why our business exists and is the difference we are trying to make for our customers -
our purpose IS
We connect peaple for an enriched and safer life

Our Vision is the statement of our ambition for the future — our vision Is

To be central to every vital connection people make, avery day

Our Values sit at the heart of who we are and what makes us spectal We believe in three core values where we
amto be

Ingenious Stralghtforward Collaborative

Amiva Broadcast Holdings Limited
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Ingenlaus; we find ingenious and smarter ways o support our customers, we inspire customers and each other; we
embrace change and fresh thinking, wa find solutions that add real value

Straightforward we talk and act in a clear and straightforward way (o make sure we are glways effective and
understood, we keep things simple and clear; we act with integnly, we are plain speaking and we listen

Collaborative we bnng experiise and passion to colaborate as ane team and go that extra mile, we engage widely
and act as one leam, we take persaonal responstbily, we build on our strengths

By getting these values nght we will realise our vision
To be central to every vital connection people make, every day

Charitable donations, community and social activities

Taking a collaborative approach to our work, our people and the communities in which we operate i1s an important
company value forus It is one of ihe reasons why we continue to partner with The Punce’s Trust and Walking with
the Wounded (WWTW') charities

Arqiva acted successfully as the Communications Partner for the WWTW South Pole Allied Challenge in December
2013 The three teams arnved at the South Pole on Fnday 13 December — a day considered unlucky for some, but
a monumental day for all the team members involved Arqiva 1s continuing ifs relationship with WWTW, and had two
teams entering the Cumbnan Challenge 2014 in June - a 33km walk in and around Grasmere In total, the teams
raised over £6,000, with addiional Company malched funding

We are supporting The Pnnce’s Trust fundraising eforts, such as the Palace to Palace bike nde in Oclober 2014,
our secend year of invalvement, where up ta 4,000 paople will nde from Buckingham Palace to Windsor Castle
Arqwa ts also a patron of The Pnnce's Trust. The Pnnce's Trust focuses its efforts on helping young people with
practical and financial support, and developing key workplace skills

The work of The Pnnce’s Trust fits perfectly with our purpose, wision and values as its key aim 1s to keep young
people connected with society As part of our Carporate Responsibility strategy, we are working with The Prnce’s
Trust to help them run programmes that encourage young pecple to take responsibility for themselves and help them
build the life they choose rather than the one they've found themselves with

in addition, the help it provides indudes raining, personal development, busmness start-up suppo:t, mentoring and
advice It 1s ingerious in the way that it has changed young peaple's lives, not through condescension and free
hand-outs, but by giving them the means lo help themselves Likewise, our own Apprentice Programme recognises
the value that young peoplé can make both to the workplace and society as a whole

Dunng the year, the Group made a significant number of chantable donations  All contributions were made as part
of a matched funding scheme to match employee fundraising for charitable events up to £500 per employge The
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Group also supports the Give As You Earn scheme, working in partnership with the Chanties Aid Foundation which
manages the Give As You Eam scheme - the UK's leading payroll gnng scheme

Employees are supported to take part in ‘Give and Galn Day’ volunteerng achvities whereby they give their ime o
local chanties and organisations for special projects which has included numerous activities such as upgrading the
garden area at a local school Over 250 employees took part

Global Corperale Challenge (GCC’) 1s a wellness programme that encourages particlpants to be active over a 100
day penod, using pedometers 1o track daly steps This year, Arqiva has 23 teams (161 employees) participating
from a number of different locations including a US team They will be joined by aver 57,000 other teams from 1,500
of the world’s largest employers Arqiva 15 commitied 1o supporting musculoskeletal health, and this challenge is a
great activity to strengthen muscles and bones, and lower nsk of injury

Environmernt

The Group 15 committed to complying with all applicable environmental legislation and annually assesses the
environmental impact of its activities, products and services and aims to reduce any negative impacts through active
environment management The Group operates an environmental management system which s accredited to the
international standards 1S014001 and ISO50001, the latter being the valuntary International Standard for “Energy
Management Systems”

Energy consumption is a key area of nterest for the Group given Arqva is a significant censumer of electncity
Arqiva has launched a new energy policy which reflects the company's commitments to improving energy efficency
by

Reducing energy consumption,

Investing in energy effictent technology,

Purchasing energy effectively, and

Menitoning carbon emissions

One of Argiva's business arms is to reduce carbon emissions and energy costs whilst complying with energy
legislation We have a dedicaied team looking at new and innovative ways of dnving down our carben foolpnnt
Responsible management of energy has a key role in minimising our environmental ympacts and 1s embedded within
our company We are investigating how emerging technologies and ingemious ways of working can help us and our
customers become more environmentally fnendly As new technologies emerge and legacy equipmeni is replaced
we look for the most environmeantally-fnendly ways to dispose of redundant hardware For example, following the
completion of the DSO programme we had to remove and dispose of our analogue television infrastructure, and
managed to recycle over 50% of the waste

The Arqiva energy policy 1s committed to ensunng we meet, and where possible, exceed the requirements of
applicable legislation, policies and ather commitments to which we subscrbe  All employees are encouraged to
participate in the energy reduchon aims of the company, and the Arqiva Managemen! Board suppon the energy
policy, as well as promoting and mamntaining a high profile for carbon and energy issues within the orgamisaton

We have achieved year on year energy consumption reductions and conltinue to strive in our efforts to make further
reductions The business alms to reduce energy consumption by 1% per annum, and as at June 2014, a 1 9%
reduction has been achieved against pnor year

Employees

The average number of persons employed by the Group dunng the year was 2,002 (2013 1,804) The Company
itself has no employees (2013 noane) Arqiva recognises the significan! contribubon of its employees and makes
every effort to create a rewarding and engaging working environment

Last year Arqiva received an ‘Investors in People Gold Award' This s the highest level of Investors in People
recogniion avallable Achieving the Gold Award Is an outstanding recognition of the commitment and hard work put
in by many colleagues across the business Argiva 1s committed to retaining this award, and will next be assessed in
2018

The Group's employee forums provide an effective channel for communication and collective consultation across the
Group They play an imporiant role in enabling employees to help the Group manage change effectively The goals
of each forum are to act as the formal staff consultative body for its part of the business within Arqiva, provide a
voice to managemen! on employee Issues, nitiste and support division-wade social activitles, and promote
consultation and shanng of information The Group Employee Forum compnses representatives of all the local
forums This forum provides an effective channel for communication and collectve consultation on 1ssues that affect
the whole Group

Significant emphasis is placed on employee communication The Group intranet 'Connect makes :nformation
available to employees on all matters including company performance, growth, and tssues affecting our industry The
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refreshed values “ingenious, straightforward, and collaborative — Always”, continue to form the fundamental basis of
all Argiva business conduct and communication

Our quarterly employee magazne - 'IQ' - includes business news, informatron on special projedts, people profiles,
environmenta’ and chanty initatives and competiions The Management Board host quarterly bnefings at alf key
sites and a Managers Conference 1s held annuaily to kick-off the new financial yaar

We want all our employees lo benefit from our success and growth as a business Our annual bonus scheme
recogmses the importance of high performance and 1s designed to reward employees for achieving targels and
constantly improving overall performance, tn ine with our values The schems takes mto account the targets that
have been set by the Group and then multiplies this by a personal performance rating  The company must achieve a
frimmum EBITDA perfarmance before a bonus becomes payable which is then calculated based upon the Group
financial KPis of EBITDA, revenue and operating cash flow The bonus payment for the 2014 financial year will be
made 1n September 2014

Health and safety

The Group 13 committed to complying with applicable health and safety legrslation, and to contnual impravement in
achieving a high standard of health, safety and welfare in iis operations and for all those in the organisation and
others who may be affecied by its activities The Group operates a safety management system that is accredied to
the international standard OHSAS18001 The Directors regularly review health and safety reporis in relation to the
Group's activities, employees and contractors

Information security
Due to the cnlical importance of our sites and systems to the Argiva Group, our customers and 1 some cases as
part of the Cntical National infrastructure, the Group takes informaton secunty very seriously

Last year, Argiva became the first company in the combined Broadcast and Telecoms industry to achieve 15027001
certification for all platforms and services (end to end) for all of ts UK locations This allows Argiva to compete for
new business which requires ISO27001 accreditation and we can confidently demonstrate our security-conscious
culture and compliance with this intemationally recognised standard There are two physical secunty audits and two
internal security audits conducted every month in order to maintain our certification and since certfication, we have
passed every secunty audit

Taxation

The Group has recorded a corporation tax credit for the year ended 30 June 2014 of £18 2m (2013 £172m) This s
primanly due to two factors, capital allowances ansing as a resull of the significant mvestment in UK infrastructure by
the Group and the interest cost of funding that long term investment The capial allowances result in a 1ax deduction
spread over a penod of time defined by HMRC in order to encourage such mnvestment The mterest expense Is
deducted In accordance with UK tax legisiation for compamies which use debt to fund invesiments This interest
expense has resulted in the Group recording a net loss before taxation in the current year  Qur approach to tax s to
ensura compliance with all our legal and statutary obligations and how the legislators intended the laws to be
followed We ara commitied to mantainng a transparent and constructive working relatronship with HM Revenue &
Customs and with local tax authenties in the junsdictions in which we operate The total contnbution to UK tax
receipts including business rales, tax and NI paid by both Arqiva and employees, totalled £78 6m for the financial
year

The Arqiva Group s a pnmanly UK based infrastructure group, while there are some trading operations outside of
the UK these generate anly 1% of EBITDA and there are no tax planning activibes undertaken which seek to reduce
its UK profits or revenues by transfernng revenue or profit out of the UK  The Group's small trading entibes overseas
desl directly with customers in their area of residence and fullil their tax requrements in the local junsdictions

This report was approved by the Board of Directors on 9 September 2014 and signed on its behalf
by

Peter Shore
Chairman
19 September 2014

Amra Broadeast Holdings Limited
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Directors’ report and statement of Directors’ responsibilities

The Directors of Arqiva Broadcast Holfings Limited (ABHL'), regmstered company number 05254001, (the
Company’) and is subsihanes ('the Group') submit the annual report and audited consolidated firancial statements
{'financial slatements’) in respect of the year ended 30 June 2014

The Company 1s a holding company with an investment in a group of operaling comparues, financing companies and
other holding companies

Financial risk management

The pnncipal nsks and uncertainties of the Group have been outlined in the Strategic report  As a result of these, as
well as the on-going business actviies and strategy of the Group, Argiva is exposed to a variety of financial nsks
that include pnce nsk, credit nsk, liquidity nsk, mterest rate nsk and foreign exchange nsk

A selection of the key financial risks affecting the Group are set out below together with a summary of the miligating

actions

Business
Unit

Description of
risklunceriainty

Mitigation of risk/uncertainty

Prica nsk Energy 15 & major A targe proportion of thfs is managed vla pass-through amangements to
componant of the Group’s customers The Group's residual exposure to fluctuations in the electnoity price
cost base and s subject to 18 managed by forward purchasing the majorty of power requirements up to 18
price volatdity months in advanca Key revenue and cost milestonaes are set an larger projects

to ensure tha financial nsks of volatite market pncing sre mitigated

Credit nsk The Group is exposed lo This Is managed through eppropnate credd checking procedures prior to taking
credit ask on customer on new customers, and higher risk customers paying m advance of services
recevables being provided Performance I8 closely monitared to ensure agreed service
The Group s exposed to :::ls are maintalned raducing the level of queried payments and mitigating the
counterparty nsks In its of uncollectable debts
Treasury operations

Details of the debt maturity profile are provided i note 17 The Group carefully
manages the credd nsk on iiquid funds and denvative financial instruments with
balances currently spread across a range of major financial nstitutions which
have satisfactory credit ratings assigned by intematfonal credit rating agencies
The levels of cradit nsk are mondored thraugh the Group's on-going risk
management processes, which mclude a regular review of the credit ratings
Risk in this area 13 limited further by setting a maximum level and term for
deposits with any single counterparty

Liquidity nsk Ensunng the Group has The Group maintains cash res=/vas and access lo undrawn commtted facilites
sufficient avaiable funds to cover forecast requirements As at 30 June 2014 the Group had £100m
for  working  capitel uaiants working capital faciities and £68 Bm cash available ta cover short term
;gw‘r:menta and planned  cach fow uming diferences i required, together with a £400m capital

expenditure fatily In addiion, the Group has E£200m of hquidity faciities
avaitable to cover senior interest paymenits if required

Financingrisk The Group will need to The Group mitigates this risk by the strength of the stable long term invesiment
refinance al least part of ts  grade capta! structure In place, our BBB ratlngs (from Standard & Poors and
debt as &t matures and may  Fitch) which reflect our strang abllity to servica and repay debt from our cash
need additional financing to  flows over a reasonable penod of tme malntalning an active dislogue with
cover capital expenditure lenders and investors, mamntaining debt with a variety of medium and long term
and cartain other sxpenses maturives so that over time we do not have a significant concentration of debt
o support ils growth plans  due for refinancing in any given year, and siming to refinance debt well in
The Group cannot ba advance of the maturity date
certain that such financing
will be readily available on
atiractve or histerically With regards to covenants the Group maintains financial covenant montonng
comparable terms and modelling, both relrospeclively and prospectively and maintains regular

dialogus with credit ratings agencies
Breach of debt covenants
andfor @ downgrade n our
rating could mpact thas
avallability of financa or the
comparability of tarms

Amlva Brosdeast Haldmgs Limited
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Interest rate Exposure lo interest rate The Group uses interest rate and inflation swaps to hedge its exposure to rising
nsk nsk due lo the varable rate  interesl rales The Group mantains a hedging policy to manage interest rate
bank debt held risk and to ensure the certanty of fulure interast cash flows It currently
hes fixed rale hedging, spit between interest rate swaps and Inflaticn
swaps Interesi rate swaps convert vanable rate intaresicosts to fixed rate
interest costs while inflation swapa conver fixed rate interest costs to RPI-
inked costs, which fluctuate in line with the RP| index as do a signficant
propartion of the Group's revenue contracts Details of the interest rate profite
of the Group's liabilities are provided in note 17
Foreign The Group operates from Managemant regularly monitor the impact of foreign exchange rigsks and assess
exchange risk UK sites and predominantly  the need to put any mitigating financial instruments in place Durning the year,
in the UK market WIS rorward forelgn exchange contracts were used to fix the exchange rate for
some  customer 8D oy uerepas revenuae conltacts, and CrOSS CUTency swaps were utilsed 10
supptler contracts are
denominated in  other fix the exchange rate in relatton to US Dollar denomineted Senior bonds
curencies  (mainly  US Details of the cross currancy swaps ane provided In note 17
Dollars and Eurcs), the
majority of the Group's
ravenues and cosls are
sterling based, and
accordingly exposure to
foreign exchange rsk is
imtted
Audit Committee

The Group's Audit Committee has responsibilities consisting of handling nsk management procedures and internal
controls, compliance and regulatory issues (including whistle blowing arrangements), accuracy of group financial
statements and the appomntment and remuneration of external auditors [n addiion, the intemal audit depariment
agrees [ts annual audit plan with the Audit Committee and regularly reports s findings and recommendations to it

The Group benefits from regular dialogue with its audtor regarding the accounting treatment of any complex ar
significant new contracts contemplated throughout each financial year, with the focus in the current year having been
on the significant new contract for smart metering services The Group proactively engages with its suditor in order
to ensure ot is well prepared for future changes to accounting standards and other appiicable developments which
may impact Argiva At present the Group I1s discussing matters including
s the recently publshed IFRS 15 'Revenue from Customer Contracls’ Standard, and the implicabons of this
new Standard on both new and existing Arqiva contracts,
« the joint JASB and FASB exposure draft on leases which continues to be evolving, with comments having
been receved by September 2013 Redeliberation 1s expected to continue in the third and fourth quarters of
2014,
s the continued opportumity presented as part of the Department for Business, Innovation and Skills
subsidiary company audit exemption provisions which were first applied in 2013, and
« the future of UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practkce (UK GAAP’) or possible conversion to
international Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS'), the changes under which would apply to the Group
from the 30 June 2016 year and, with the opening balance sheet position being 1 July 2014

The audilors prowvide certain non-audil services, principally in relation (o transaction support services, non-audit
assurance and tax comphance The Audit Committee ensures that appropriale safeguards of audit independence are
apphed where constdered necessary, including independent partner review of any key judgements

Equal opportunities policy

Applications for employment by disabled persons are always fully considered, beanng 1n mind the respective
aptitudes and abiities of the applicant cancerned In the event of members of staff becoming disabled every effort 1s
made to ensure that lheir employment with the Group continuges and the appropnate tralning arranged [t is the policy
of the Group that the {raining, career devetopmenit and promolion of a disabled person, should, as far as passible, be
identical to that of a person who does not suffer from a disability Further information on how Arqiva supports its
employees can be found on page 16 of the Strategic report.

Creditor payment policy

The Group seeks to treat all of its supplters famly and it 1s the Group's policy to egree the terms of payment at the
start of business with that supplier, ensure that suppliers are aware of the terms of payment and to pay m
accordance with its contractual and other lega! obligations

Arqiva's key costs are payroll, satelite capacity, rent, rates and power, and hence the majerity of the Group's cosl
base 1s dnven by competitive markets Argiva engage multiple large national supphess for key services such as

Arqiva Broadeas! Holdings Limeed
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utihities and construction agreements required for new contracts This ensures nol just a viable on-gong cost base
but reduces business nsk by hm:ting dependency on indvidual suppliers

Research and development

The Group performs research and development into new products and technelogy, the costs of which are capitalsed
n accordance with the Group’s accounting policy where they meet the cnteria for capitalisation under UK GAAP The
research costs expensed in the year were £2 3m (2013 £1 9m) In addition, the Group cames out research and
development as part of its contract bid processes and these costs are expensed as part of the bid costs unless the
development expenditure can be capitalised The bid costs expensed dunng the year total £3 8m (2013 £156m)

Development costs incurred as part of capital expenditure projects which support customer contracts, are included
with the total project spend within tangible fixed assels The Group's capital expendituse in the year was £183 8m
(2013 £137 6m) and includes capitalised labour of £43 3m (2013 £41 7m) Other development cosis would be
capitahsed within intangible fixed assets In tha year, development costs capitalised tolal £0 8m {2013 Emil), wath
amortisation of £nit (2013 £nil) charged against such capitalised development costs

Overseas branches
The Group has trading branches based in the Republic of Ireland, Isle of Man and Jersey

Post balance sheet events

Subsequent to the year end, the Group has concluded a new 1ssue of 15-year floating rate, Sterling, amortising US
Private Placement debt which has raised £300m and was used to make a repayment against the existing 5-year
bank term faciitres There have been no other events since the balance sheet date which would have a matenal
impact on the Group and require disclosure within the financial statements under UK GAAP

Dividends and transfers to reserves
The Company has declared no dividends in the year (2013 £ml) A Group company has daeclared externa! dividends
of £nf (2013 £0 1m) The consclidated loss for the year of £503 7m (2013 £304 4m) was transferred to reserves

Going concern
The Company s in a ne! asset position, and the Group adopts the going cencem basis in prepanng its financial
statements Further detail 1s contained in the Strategic report and note 1 1o the financial siatements

Future developments
The Group plans to continue to invest in ts business umts in accordance with the agenda for growth Further detail s
containad within the Strategic report

The Company will continue to remain a helding company

Arqiva Broadcast Holdings Lwnited
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Ownership and Directors

The Company is owned by a consortium of shareholders compnsing Canada Pension Plan Investment Board (48%),
Macquane European Infrastructure Fund Il (25%) plus other Macquane managed funds (1 5%), Health Super
Investments (5 5%), Industry Funds Management {14 8%) and the Motor Trades Association of Australla (5 2%)
There is no ultmata controlling party of the Company, as defined by FRS 8 ‘Related party disclosures’

There are two nvestor companies which are related parties with the Group, 1n accordance with FRS B, by virtue of
significant shareholding in the Group
« Freguency Infrastructura Communications Assets Limsted (‘FICAL’) (48%), 8 company controlled by the
Canada Pensien Plan Investment Board The Canada Pension Plan investment Board is & professional
investment management organisation based in Toronto which mnvests the assets of the Canada Penswon
Plan The Canada Pension Plan Investment Board was Incorporated as a federal Crown corporation by an
Act of Pariament in December 1887
« Macquane European Infrastructure Fund (I (MEIF 1I') (25%), an investment fund managed by the
Macquane Group Macquane European Infrastructure Fund |l is a wholesale investment fund focusing on
investments n high-quality infrastructure businesses across Europe Macquane Group Limited 15 listed in
Australia (ASX MQG ADR MQBKY)

The Directors who oversee the Company on behalf of the shareholder consortium are as follows

Frequency Infrastructure Communications Assels Limited Macqguane European infrastructure Fund il

- Alain Carrnier - Edward Beckley

- Peter Douglas - Jeremy Beeton (resigned 9 June 2014)

- Rebert Wall - Mark Braithwaite (appointed 10 June 2014)

- Andreas Kottering (alternate) - Nathan Luckey (alternate)

- Prakul Kaushiva (altemate)

Industry Funds Management Industry Funds Management and Motor Trades
- Christian Seymour Association of Austrahs (joint appointment)

- Adrianus Wamsteker (altemnate) (resigned 29 August 2014) - Damian Walsh

Peter Shore 1s the Group's independent Chairnan Michael Giles is the Company Secretary For detais on the
background of the Directors' end the managemenl baard please refer to the company website www argqiva com

Directors’ indemnitles
The Company has provided an indemnity for its Directors and the Company Secretary, which 15 a qualifying third
party indemnty provision for the purposes of the Companles Act 2006

Disclosure of information to the Independent Auditors
The Directors of the Company in office al the date of approval of this report confim that
= 30 far ag the Directors are aware there is no relevant audit information of which the Auditors are unaware,
and
s each Director has taken all the staps that he ought to have taken as a Director to make himself aware of
any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company's Auditors are aware of that information

Arqive Broadeast Holdings Limited
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for prepanng the annual report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the
Orrectors have prepared the Group and parent company financial stalements in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Prachice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable faw) Under
company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true
and far view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Company and of the profit or loss of the Group far that
penod En prepanng these financial stalements, the Directors are required to
* select suitable accountng policies and then apply them consistently,
* make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonabie and prudent,
¢ state whether applicable UK accounting standards have been followad, subject to any matera! departures
disclosed and explained in the financiat statements, and
* prepare the financial statements on the going concemn basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Group and Company will continue In business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
Company's transactiens and disclose with reascnable accuracy at any tme the financial position of the Company
and the Group and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2008 They
are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and the Group and hence for taking reasonable
staps for the prevention and detect:on of fraud and ather irregularities

The Directors are responsible far the maintenance and integnty of lhe Company's website Legistation in the United
Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial stalements may differ from legislation in other
Junsdictions

On behalf of the Board

Peter Shore - Chairman
Crawley Court
Winchester
Hampshire
8021 2QA

19 September 2014
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Independent Auditors’ report to the Members of Argiva
Broadcast Holdings Limited

Report on the financial statements

Our opinion
In our opinion the financlal statements, defined below
« give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the Company's affairs as at 30 June 2014 and of
the Group's loss and cash flows for the year then ended,
« have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice,
and
« have been prapared in accordance with the requirements of the Companlas Act 2006
This opinion i to be read in the context of whal we say in the remainder of this report

What we have audited
The Group financial stalements and Company financial statements (the “financial statements”), which are prapared
by Arqiva Broadcast Holdings Limited, camprise
« the consohdated balance sheet and the Company balance sheet as at 30 June 2014,
» the consolidaled profil and loss account and the statement of Group total recognised gains and losses for
the year then ended,
« the consolidated cash fow statement for the year then ended, and
« the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information
The financial reporting framework that has been applhed in therr preparation 1s applicable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Praclice)

In applying the financial reporting framework, the directors have made a number of subjective judgements, for
example in respect of significant accountng estimates In making such estmates, they have made assumptions and
considered future events

What an audlt of financial statements involves
We conducled our audit in accordance with Intemational Standards on Audting (UK and Ireland) (YiSAs (UK &
Ireland)”) An audit involves oblaining evidence aboul the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements
sufficient 10 give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether
caused by fraud or error This includes an assessment of

«  whether the accounting policies are appropnale to the Group's and the Company's circumstances and have

been consistently applled and adequately disclosed,

« the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors, and

« the overall presentation of the financial stalements
In addition, we read alt the financial and non-financial information in the Annua! Repon and Consolidated Financial
Statements (the “Annual Report™) 1o identify matenal inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to
identify any information that 1s apparently matenally incorrect based on, or matenally inconsistant with, the
knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit if we become aware of any apparent matenal
misstatements or iInconsistencies we consider the implications for our report

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the imformation given in the Strategic report and the Directors’ report for the financial year for which
the financial statements are prepared i1s consistent with the financial statements

Other matters on which we are required to report by exception

Adequacy of accounting records and information and explanations received

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion
* we have not received all the information and expianations we require for our audit, or

« adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Company, or returns adequate for our audit have
not been receved from branches not visited by us, or

« tha Company financial stalements are not in agreement with the accounbng recards and returns
We have no exceptions to repoart ansing from this respeonsibility

Argiva Brosdeast Holdings Limited
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Directors’ remuneration

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you «f, in our opiion, certain disclosures of directors’
remuneration specified by law are not made We have no exceptions to report ansing from this responsibility

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Our responsibilities and those of the directors

As explained more fully in the Statement of Direclors' rasponsibiibies set out on page 22, the directors are
responsible for the preparabon of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and farr view
Qur responsibibity 15 to audit and express an opinion on the financia! statemants in accordance with applicable law
and I1SAs (UK & lreland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical
Standards for Audilors

This reporl, tncluding the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company's members as 8 body In
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose We do not, in gving
these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person 1o whom this repart 1s
shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prer consant i wnting

AR

Alan Kinnear (Semor Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Southampton

H September 2014
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Consolidated profit and loss account

Year ended 30 Juns 2014

Year ended 30 Juns 2013

Pre sxcopiional Exceptional Total p plsonal Totat
Nota tema iterna hems hems
E'm Em £m £m Em £'m

Continuing operations
Tumover {including share of 3
jolnt ventura) 8395 - 8395 8282 8292
Leas share of joint venture turnover {13 9) - {139) (84) - {8 4)
Group turnover 2 8256 - 8254 B208 - 8208
Cost of sales (301 4} - {301 4) (292 2) - (292 2)
Gross profit 524 2 - 524 2 528 6 “ 5286
Depreciation (122 6) - (122 6) {105 9) - {105 9)
Amartisation (157 7) - (1577 (159 1) - {159 1)
Other admunisirative expenses {117 8) 82) (126 ) {112 2} (268 8) (141 0)
Total Administrative expenses (398 1) {82) (406 3) (377 2) (28 8) {408 0)
Group operating profit 3.4 1261 &2} 1179 1514 (28 8) 1226
Share of operating profit in joint )
ventura and assoclates 27 27 17 i 17
Taotal operating profit Group and
share of joint vanture and 1288 82 1206 153 1 (28 B) 1242
assoclates
Income from investments 04 - 04 ct - a1
Profit on ordinary activitias bafore
taxation and Interest 129 2 {82) 1210 1532 {28 8) 124 4
Interest recervable and similar incoma 7 23 - 23 20 - 20
Interast payable and similar charges 4.8 {531 1) {112 3) (643 4) (446 7) - (446 7)
Share of joint venture interest payable (15) - (15) (14Q) - (o
Loss on ordinary activities before
taxatian {401 1) {1205) {621 8) (292 5) (28 8) (3213)
Tax on loss on ordinary activities 9 182 172
Loss on ordinary activities after
taxation {503 4) (304 1)
Equiy minonty interasts {03) 03
Losas for the financlal year 21 {503 7) {304 4)

There are no matenal differences between losses on ordinary actvites for the year above and the comparative year and theirr

historical cost equivalents

Argqva Broadcast Holdings Limited
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Consolidated balance sheet

Nots 30 June 2014 3¢ June 2012
£m £'m
Fixed asssts
Intangible assets 1" 1,866 B 20180
Tangible assets 12 1,710 3 16583
Investments 13
investments in join! venture
- Shara of gross assets 221 170
- Share of gross liabiilies {19 8) {15 8)
- Goodwill on acquisition 82 a7
Investments in essociated undertakings ot 01
106 100
3,5677 3,686 3
Currant assets
Debtors 14 2696 2546
Cash at bank and in hand i5 974 149 ¢
Tolal current assets 3670 4036
Crediters amounts falling due within one year 16 970 7) {682 2)
Net currant liabilities [603.7) {279 6)
Total assets less cumrent liabilities 2,984 0 34077
Credilors amounts falling due aRer more than one year t7 (4,297 B) {4,201 5)
Provisions for fabilttes and charges 18 {47 9) (54 1)
Nat habilities excluding pension surplus/{deficit) {1,361 5) {847 9}
Pansion surplus/{deficit) 27 38 23
Net liabilibes including pension surptus/(deficit) (1,367 7} (850 2)
Capital and reserves
Caled up share capital 19 653 9 653 8
Share premium account 20 3156 3158
Profit and loss reserve 21 (2327 9) (1,820 2)
Total shareholders’ deficit 22 (1,388 4) (850.7)
Minonty Interest Q7 (W]
Capital employed {1,357 1) (850 2)

The accounting policies and notes on pages 30 to 60 form pard of these financral statements

These financial statements were
behalf by

ved by the Board of Drectors on 19 September 2014 and were signed on its

Peter Shore ~ Director
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Statement of group total recognised gains and losses

Year snded Year endsd
30 June 2014 30 June 2013
£'m E'm
Loss faor the financial year

- Group {504 9) {305 1)
- Joint Ventures 12 o7
Loss for the financial year {503 7) {304.4)
Actuanal lass on penswon scheme 5.3) (0 5)
Mavement on deferred tax relating to penston scheme 11 o1
Exchange adjustment offset In reserves (transfation of foreign invesiments) 02 02)
Total recognised losses for the year {507.7) {305 0)

Total recognised losses for the financial year
- Group (508 9) (305 7)
Jomnt Ventures 12 07
Total recognised losses for the yezar (507 7) {305 0)
27
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Consolidated cash flow statement

Nots Your anded Year ended
30 Junw 2014 20 June 2013
£'m £m
Net cash Infiow from operating activities 23 3421 3490
Returns on Investment and servicing of finance
Interest receved 09 16
Interast paid (2287 {166 0)
Interest element of finance lease rentals {11) 1)
Debt 1ssue costs and facilty arrangement fees 7 {97 2)
Dividends from mvestments 04 01
DCividends paid to minority interests - @)
(236 2) (2827)
Tax paid {04) {02
Capital expenditure and financial investment
Purchase of tangible fixed assels (152 8) {125 6)
Purchase of intangible fixed assets {(12) [0 €)
Sale of tangible fxed assets 81 43
{145 9) {121 9)
Acquisitions and disposals
Purchase of subsidiary undertakings (including payment of defered consideration) 39 207)
Cash/{overdraft) acquired with subsidlary undertaiungs 01 (1)
Sale of fixed asset investmenis . 02
{3 8) (29 6}
Financing
Finance lsass capital {0 5) (086)
Loans 1o associates and joint ventures {02) c1n
Repayment of external borrowings {534 2) {3,751.0)
Rasmg of external barrowings 585 37345
Deferred denvative close out costs cash settled - 98 1)
Premium on swap issuance 1053 .
Cash outflow on close out of swaps (112 3) -
Restncied cash . (28 5)
(7.4) {143 8)
Decraase in cash 24 {51 8) {208 2)
Reconciliation of net cash flow 1o movement in net debt
Net debt st 1 July (3.964 0) (3,862 4)
Decrease m net cash (51 8) (209 2)
Movement in financing T4 143 8
Increase In restricted cash . (28 5)
Other cash changes 77 972
Other non-cash changes (189 9) {104 9)
Net debt at 30 June 24 (4,190 4) {3,964 0)
Argiva Broadcast Holdings Limitad 2
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Company balance sheet

Note 30 fune 2014 30 June 2013
£m £'m

Fixed assats
Investments 13 17670 1,767 0
Curmrent assets
Debtors (including £1 8m due after more than one year (2013 E1 8m) 14 18 18
Cash at bank and in hand 15 01 -
Total eurrant assels 19 18
Creditors amounts falling due within ane year 16 (01} -
Net current assets 18 18
Total assots less current liabilittes 1,788 8 1,768
Capital and roserves
Called up share capltal 19 6539 g539
Share premium account 20 3156 3156
Profil and loss reserve 21 7493 7993
Total shareholders’ funds 22 1,768 8 1,768 8

The accounting palicies and notes on pages 30 to 60 form part of hese financiat statements

These financial statemen{s were approved by the Board of Directors on H September 2014 and were signed on its

behatf by

7 Cd
Peter Shore - Director /_
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Notes to the financial statements

1

Principal accounting policies

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently m relation to the Group's and Company's financial
statements

(a)

{b)

{c}

(d)

Basis of preparation

The financial staltements have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 20056 and applicable UK
accounting standards under the histoncal cost convention The Company is exempt under s408 of the
Companies Act 2006 from the requirement to present ts own profit and loss account The Company made a
loss for the year of £0 03m (2013 £91 9m profit) pror to dwvidends padd of £nif (2013 £nil)

Basig of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets and hablities of all enties controlled by the
Company, as at 30 Juna 2014, and the resulls of al! controlled entities for the year then ended

Businesses acquired, previousily held extemnally to the Group, are accounted for as acquisitions with effect from
the date control passes Those disposed of are accounted for up until the date of disposal Infra group profits
have been ebminated Underakings, other than subsidiary undertakings, in which the Group has an investment
representing not less than 20% of the voting nghts and cver which it exerts significant influence are treated as
associated undertakings Associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting in accordance
with FRS 9 ‘Associates and jomnt ventures’ Joint ventures are accounted for using the gross equity method The
consolidated financial statements include the appropnate share of those undertakings' resulls and reserves

Going concern

The Group adopts the going concern basis in prepanng its consolidated financial statements based on future
profit, cash flows and availlable faciiies, which lead the Directors of the Company to be confident that the
Group will have adequate resources to continue in operational existence lor the foreseeable future Durnng the
year, the Group had a net cash inflow from operating activities of £342 1m (2013 £349 Om)

The Company is tn a net asset position and has net current assels

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

Tangible fixed assets are stated at onginal purchase cost (which includes costs direclly attnbutable to bnnging
the assets into working conditicn), being fair value for tangible fixed assets acquired on acquisition, less
accurnulated depreciation and any provision for impairment

In accordance with FRS 15 'Tangible fixed assets', directly attributable finance costs are capitahsed where
assets take a significant period of ime to become ready for use

Depreciation is provided on a straight line basis ai rates calculated to wate off the cost or valued amount, less
esttmated residual value, of assets over thelr estimated useful ives The useful econormuc lives of the assets
have been determined taking into account the expected rate of technological developments, market
requiremenis and expected use of the assets The selected depreciation rates are regulary reviewed to ensura
they remain appropriate to the Group's circumstances

Asset Description Estimated Useful Life
Freehold buildings 20 - 80 years
Leasehold buildmgs Langth of lease

Plant and equipment

- Communications {nfrastructure network 8- 100 years

- Network computer equipment 3— 20 years

- Motor vehicles 3-5years

Freehold land is not depreciated

Capital work i progress is not depreciated untl construction 1s complele and the asset Is capable of operating in
the manner intended by the Group in accordance with FRS 15
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1
{e)

n

{9

(h)

{i)

Principal accounting policies (continued)

Turnover
The Group's accounting pohicy in respect of turnover 15 set out in note 2

Intangible fixed assets and amortisation

Intangible fixed assets are stated at original purchase cost, being farr value for intangible fixed assels acquired
on acquisition, less accumulated amortisation and eny provision for impairment  The useful economic fives of
intangible fixed assets are reviewed on an annual basis and revised if required, and consideralion is made of
whelher there has been any Indicator of impairment

Resgearch and Development costs

Development costs incurred to produce new, or substantially Improved, products and services within the Group
are capitalised in accordancs with SSAP 13 ‘Accounting for research and development’ and are amortised from
the commencement of service over the Iife of the relevant contract Research costs, expenmental or theoretical
work undertaken which does not constitute development, are expensed as incurred

Licences

Licences acquired (lypically to provide radio and WiFi services) and are capitabsed and amortised on a straight
line basts aver theit licence penod

Goodwill

Purchased goodwll Is capitalised and amortised on a straight line basis over its estimated useful Ife, which s
considered to be no longer than 20 years The Group capialises costs associated with the acquisition of
subsidiaries within goodwill

Access rights

Access nghts include custemer coniracts and customer relationships and are stated at original purchase cost,
beng fair value for acquired subsidianes, and amortised on a straight ine basis over their expected useful Iife

Fixed asset Investments

Fixed assel investments are stated at cost less any provision for impairment in value, in accordance with FRS 11
"Impairment of fixed assets and goodwill’

Foreign currencies

Transachons In foraign currencies are translated at the exchange rate nuling at the date of the transaction except
in the case of certain financing Iransactions where hedging arrangemenis are in place and transactions are
racorded at the contracted rate Monetary assets and liabllities denoted in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the exchange rate ruling at the balance sheet date or contracted rate if applicable and any exchange difference
ansing are taken to the profit and loss account  Transactions in the profit and loss account of overseas
operations are transiated usmg an average exchange rate Exchange differences on translation of overseas
branches are recognised through the *Statement of group total recognised gains and losses’

Leasing commitments

Assels held under finance leases, which are leases where substantially all the nsks and rewards of ownership of
the asset have passed to the Group, are capitalised 1n the balance sheet and depreciated over thewr useful
economic ives or the lease term, if shorter

The capilal elemenis of future lease oblgations are recorded as [tabilities, while the interest elements are
charged to the profit and loss account over the peniod of the lease to produce 8 canstani rate of charge on the
balance of capital repayments cutstanding

Operating lease payments for assets leased from third parties are charged to the profit and lass account on a
straight line basls over the penod of the lease
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1

)

(k)

n

{m)

(n

(o)

Principal accounting policies {continued)

Equipment leased to customers under finance leases 1s deemed to be sold at narmal selling pnce and this value
1s taken to turnover at the inception of the lease Debtors under finance leases reprasent outstanding amounts
due under these agreements, less finance charges allocated to future periods Finance lease interest is
recogmsed over the primary penod of the lease s0 as to produce a consiant rate of return on the net cash
Investments

Taxation and defarred taxation

The charge for taxation s based on the result for the year and takes into account taxation deferred due to timung
differences between the treatrnent of cerlamn iems for taxation and accounting purposes Deferred taxation is
provided fully in respect of all timing differences using the hiabiity method for iming differences where there (s an
obligation to pay more tax, or a nght to pay less tax, in the future The prowsion 13 calculated using the rates
expected to be applicable when the asset or hability crystalises based on current tax rates and laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date

A deferred tax asset 1s regarded as recoverable and therefora recognised only when it 1s more likely than not
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to recover camied forward {ax losses and fram which the
futura reversal of tming differences can be deducted Deferred tax is not recogmised on revalued fixed assets
until a binding agreement is in place to sell such assets and the resuling gamn or loss has been recognised in the
financlal statements Oeferred lax s measured on an undiscounted basts

Provisions

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required o settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects the current market assessments of the time value of money and the nsks
specific to the obhgation The increase in the provision due to the passage of tme 15 recognised as Interest
expensa

Decommissioning provisions are recognised withuin provisions for liabiittes and charges and included within fixed
assets, where the costs of dismanthing assets are considered matenal The amounts recognised within fixed
assets are depreciated over the useful economic Iife of the asset The provisions are discounted to reflact the
time value of money where matenal

Borrowings

Borrowings are stated at their 1ssue proceeds, net of issue costs, less amounts repaid Issue costs are
amortised over the term of the bomowing to achieve a constant rate on the carmying amount  Interest on the
borrowings is recognised as an expense as it accrues over the penod of the ican, unless capitalised as noted in

pohcy (d)
Post retirement benefits

Defingd coninbution schemes

For defined contnbution schemes, the amecunt charged to the profil and loss account In respect of pension cosls
and other post-retirement benefits is the contnbuton payable in the year Differences between contributions
payable for the year and contnbutions actually paid are shown as either accruals or prepayments in the balance
sheet

Defined benefit schemes

Defined benefit schemes are funded, with the agsets of the scheme held separately from those of the Group, in
separale trustee administered funds Pension scheme asseis are measured at falr value and liabllitles are
measured on an actuanal basis using the projected unit method and discounted at a rate equivalent to the
current rale of retumn on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent currency and terms to the scheme liabihittes
Any defined benefit asset or liabikty is presented separately on the face of the balance sheet and net of deferred
tax

Cash at bank and in hand
Cash at bank and overnight deposits are disclosed wathin cash at bank

Intarest

Interest income and expense are accounted for on an accruals basis and compnse amounts receivable on
deposits and payable on borrowings and finance leases
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1

()

(q)

Principal accounting policies (continued)

Derivative financial instruments

The Group uses interest rate and inflation swaps to reduce its exposure to fluctuations in vanable interest rates
on s debt Receipts, payments and accreting habiliies on interest rate and inflation swaps ara recognised on an
accruals basis, over the hfe of the instrument. Changes in the fair value of such denvatives are not recognised
Amounts recewved and paid under interest rate and Inflabon swaps are shown net under financing costs, where
they are part of the same legal agreement and setited net in practice The Group utises forward foregn
exchange contracts to hedge the value of iis foreign curency transactions In addition, the Group utilises cross
currency swaps to hedge the pnncipal and interest payments due under foreign cumency debt instruments
against vanations in forergn exchange and inlerest rates The changes in the fair value of such derivatives are
not recognised, and the gam or loss on setifement is taken to the profit and loss account

Upon its refinancing in February 2013 the Group terminated certan mnlerest rale swap arrangements The
economic substance of these transactions reflected the averall hedging strategy of the Group from the original
debt raising and the subsequent refinancing As such the lermination costs have been deferred and netted
against the financing hability and are to be amortised lo finance costs in the profit and loss account aver the
term of the new fixed rate debt and are classified as derivative close out costs

Share issue costs

In accordance with the prowsion contained in FRS 4 *Capital Instruments’, all issue costs (as defined within the
meaning of FRS 4) are accounted for as a deduction in the proceeds of the relevant capital instruments

2 Turnover and segmental reporting

Turnover, which is stated net of value added tax, includes the vatue of charges made for {ransmission services,
distnbution services, products, facilites leasing, external network services lo national and international telecommunicahon
operators, other contracts, rents from properties and charges made under site shanng agreements

Tumnover 13 recognised as services are provided Cash recewed or invoices raised in advance is taken to deferred
income and recogrised as tumover when service 1s provided Where consideration received in advance 1s discounted
reflecting a significant financing companent i 1s reflected within turnover and interesl payable and swmiar charges
Turnover recogrised In advance of cash receved or invoices raised is taken to accrued income

Profit 1s recognised on long-term contracts, if the final outcome can be assessed with reasanable certainty, by mcluding in
the profit and loss account tumover and ralated costs as contract actwvity progresses Tumover is calculated by reference
to the value of work performed as a proportion of the total contract value

The geographical split of tumover by destination is shown below

Group Group

Yaar snded Yarr enciad

30 June 2014 30 Juna 2013

E'm Em

uK T7 4 7285
Continental Europe (Including Republic of ireland) 5286 550
Rest of World 456 373
Group turnover 8256 8208
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2 Turnover and segmental reporting {continued)
The geographical split of tumaver by ongin 1s shown below

Group Group

Year anded Year anded

30 June 2014 30 Juns 201}

£'m £m

UK 01,7 784 6
Continental Europe {including Republic of Ireland) 152 57
Rest of World ay 105
Group turnover 8256 B20 8

Segmental reporting

The Group has orgamised its business into five customer facing business units, supported by a Technology division and
central corporate funclions This structure 1s used to provide the following segmental reporting in relation 10 Group

tusnover This s stated net of intra-divisional trading

Temestnal Brosdcast Satallis ang Digital Fistformsa Talscoms Smart Metenng (M2M) Totsl
Media
£Em E'm £fm £€m Em Em
Turnover for the year
ended
30 June 2014 2581 1638 1390 218 128 8256
30 June 2013 2840 1707 1320 2341 - 8208

The majonty of assets employed and underlying costs are denved from a shared infrastructure network common to all
operating business units An allocation of such assels to the busmess units 1$ not performed as part of the normal
reporiing process within the business In the absence of a suitable allocation methodology and given the size of the
shared assets, the Duwectors are of the opimon that addihonal segmental reporting would not provide any meaningful

Information to the users of the financial statements

Whilst management review directly attributable costs by each revenue generating business unit, the Directors are of the

opion that further disclosure would be seriously prejudicial to the Group
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3 Operating profit

Qperating profit 1s stated after charging / (crediting)

Group Group
Year snded Yoar sndad
30 June 2014 30 June 2013
'm £m
Depraciation of owned fixed assets 1221 1055
Depraciation of assats held under finance lease D& 04
Amortisation of goodwill in respect of subsidianes 1551 1553
Amortisation of intangible assets 21 20
Amortisation of investments in joint ventures 05 18
Opearating lease rentals
- Lang, buiidings and other Infrastructure 436 412
- Plant and machinery 18 16
Loss on disposal of tangible fixed assets 24 18
Foreign exchange gains (0 5) (15)
Grant Income (12) @7
Services provided by the Group's Auditors and network firms
Dunng the year the Group obtamned the following senvices from the Group's Auditors at costs as detailed below
Group Group
Yaar ended Year sndaed
30 Juns 2014 10 June 2013
£'m £'m
Fees payable to Company Aud:tors for the audst of parent company and consohdated Q1 a1
financtal statements
Fees payable for the audit of the Company s subsidianes a3 03
Non-audit services
Other assurance services 04 02
Services relating to taxation a1 01
Services relating to corperate finapce {including refinancing) a2 18
All cther services - 02
Total cost of sarvices provided by the Group's Auditors 11 27
Argiva Broadcast Holdings Limited 15
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4 Exceptional items

The Group recogmses exceptional items in accordance wath FRS 3 ‘Reporting Financial Perfarmance’ where matenal
1tems, derwved from events or transactions within the ordinary activiies of the Group, require disclosure by virtue of thewr
size or incidence for the financial statements to give a true and fair view

Loss on ordinary activities before taxation is stated after charging

Group Group
Yeaar snded Yazr snded
10 Juns 2014 30 June 2013
£'m E'm

Administrative expenses
- Reorganisation and severance {62) )]
- Comporate finance activities (includmng refinancing) {0 1) (3 6}
- Centract bid costs refating lo sman metenng - {15 6)
- Other one off activities {19) {23)
82 {28 8)

Financlng expensea

- Close out of swaps (112 3) -
Total exceptional items {120 5) {28 8)

Reorganisation and severance costs in the current and prior year pnmanly represent amounts incurred in relation to the
organisational realignment completed dunng the year

Corporate finance activities relate to early refinancing costs and the costs of employees working specifically on the
refinancing process which have not been included within debt 1ssue costs in ine with UK GAAP

Other one off activities includes costs relating to other business change projects, predominantly related tc the divestment
of our digital cinema delivery network

Financing expenses compnse £112 3m costs incurred in relation to the brezling of interest rale swap agreements (see
note 17) The termination payments were parbally funded by a £105 3m premium receved for entenng into the
replacement interest rate swaps, the £7m cash settled represents the differance between the termination costs paid and
the premuum received

The above amounts are deductble for the purpose of taxation The aggregate tax mpact of these items was a tax
deduction of £27 1m (2013 a tax deduction of £6 Bm)
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5 Staffcosts

The Company had no employees during the year (2013 none) The average monthly number of persons employed by
the Group dunng the year was as follows

Group R F iy reported

Yaur anded Group Group

a0 fune 2014 Year endnd Yasr apded

30 Juns 2013 10 June 2013

Numbar Numbsr Numbar

Broadcast and Media - - 198
Terrestrial Broadcast 550 526 -
Satellte and Media 361 334 -
Digttal Platforms ar 35 23
Telecoms 365 50 243
Business Operations - - 1,095
Smart Mstenng 39 - -
Technology and Corporate functions 650 659 344
Total staff numbers 2,002 1,904 1,804

Dunng the year ended 30 June 2014, the Group completed an organisational reakignment As a result, the above
disclosure includes a restatement of the comparative information for the year ended 30 June 2013

The aggregate payroll costs of thase persons were as follows

Group Group

Year snded Year ended

30 June 2014 30 June 2013

'm £'m

Wages and safanes 1239 11758
Social secunty cosls 133 124
Other pansion costs 101 89
Total staff costs 147 3 1398
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6 Diractors’ emoluments

Dunng the year one Direclor (2013 one) was an employee of Argiva Limited (a subsidiary company), but was not a
member of any group pension scheme

One of the Directors (2013 one) was a representative of the Company's shareholders and his individual remuneration
reflects the services they provide to the Company, its subsidianes and certain other enbities outside of the Group s,
however, possible o make an accurate apportionment of thie Director's emoluments in respect of therr service to the
Group Accordingly, this 1s taken into account in providing the following disclosure

Group Group

Year anded Yaar enced

30 Juna 2014 30 June 2013

£m £©m

Aggregate ermoluments 03 03
Sums paid to third parties in respect of services - o1
Total emofuments 03 04

All other Directors were representatives of the Company's shareholders and ther indwvidual remuneration reflects the
senvices they provide to the Company, its subsidianes and a number of other enbties outside of the Group It s therefore
not possible to make an accurate apportionment of each Director's emoluments in respect of their service to the
Company and the Group except where sums are pad to third parties in respect of therr services Accordingly, the details
set out in the table above include no emoluments 1In respect of these Directars ather than in relation to sums paid to third
parties in respect of services

Highest paid director
Included in the above are emaluments i respect of the highest paid Director of

Group Group

Year snded Yoar snded

20 June 2014 30 Juns 2013

Em £'m

Aggregate emoluments g3 03

Total emoluments 03 03
7 Interestreceivable and similar income

Group Group

Yeur endsd Yuar sndad

30 Junw 2014 39 June 2013

Em £m

Bank interest 04 13

Finance lease inlerest recelvable 02 03

Other interest 17 04

Total interest receivable 23 20
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8 Interest payable and similar charges

Group Group

Year encded Yaar ended

30 June 2094 30 June 2013

E'm Em

Bank loan nterest 144 5 2046
Other loan interast 1112 kIR
Less Captalised intarest - {0 2)
Net bank and other koan interast 2557 2352
Amortisation of debt issue costs 99 362
Release of deferred derivative close out costs K] 3
Finance lease :nterest 11 11
Shareholder toan note interest 2152 1547
Other interest 187 16,4
Total interest payable 531.1 4467
Exceptionat financing expenses (see note 4) 123 -
Total intarest payable including exceptional items 8434 4467

Included within bank loan interest 15 the increase in the accrued liabilities on the Group’s inflation swaps of £39 7m (2013
£51 5m) (see note 17) Excluding this amount the net bank and other loan interest was £216 Om (2013 £183 7m) The
shareholder loan notes carry fixed interest rates of between 13% and 14%, which can be deferred a1 the oplion of the
Group
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9 Tax on loss on ordinary activities

Group Group
Yaar snded Year anded
310 June 2014 30 Jyne 2013
£m E'm
(a) Analysfs of tax credit for the year
Currant tax
UK corporation tax 02 01
Overseas tax 04 93
Total current tax 06 04
Deferred tax
Origination and revarsal of timing differances {21 4) {16 8)
Deferred tax on pension liability charged to profit and loss account 27 01
Impact of UK corporation tax rate change 46 Q7
Pror year adjustment {47) {16)
Total deferred tax {18 8) (17 8)
Tax on loss on ordinary actlvities {18 2) (17 2)
[b) Factors affecting the current tax charge for the year
The tax charge assessed for the year 1s different to the standard rate of tax in the UK of
22 5% (2013 23 75%) The differences are explained below
Loss on ordinary activities before taxation {521 6) (321 3)
Less before taxation multiphed by standard rate of carporation tax in the United Kingdom of (117 4) (76 3)
22 5% (2013 23 75%)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 09 10
Amortsation of goodwill 349 ar3
Depreciation in excess of capital allowances 226 19,9
Non qualifying depreciation 48 52
Non-deductible ban note interest 372 102
Associate / joint venture revenue / expense with no tax applicable (07 (0 4)
Income not subject to corporation tax - (03)
Generation of unrecognised tax losses 194 64
Wtihsation of recognised tax losses (14) (14)
Other iming differences - (16)
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 03 04
Total current lax 0.6 04

The UK corporation tax rate was reduced from 23% to 21% effective from 1 Apnl 2014 For the purpose of this current

tax charge analysis a blended tax rate of 22 5% (2013 23 75%) has been used

A reduced UK corporation tax rate of 20% has been substantivety enacied \n respect of fulure years (see note 14)
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10 Dividends

Dividends payable to minority interests Group Group
Yagr ended Year snded
30 June 2014 30 June 2012
£000 £900
Now Digital (East Midlands) Limited

None declared (2013 of £25 00 per share) g H9
South Wes! Digital Radio Limited . 20

None declared (2013 of £6 00 per share)
Total dividends payable to minority interests - 138

The above amounts represent dividends paid to minonty interest shareholders by Group companies No dwvidends were

paid to ABHL shareholders

11 Intangible assets

Group Licences  Dsvelopmen: costs Azcess rights Gootdwdl] Total
E'm E'm £m €m £m

Cost

At 1 duly 2013 45 10 231 ipess 30945

Additions 22 )] - aa B0

At 30 June 2014 68 1B 231 30688 31005

Accumulated amortisation

At 1 Juty 2013 28 10 158 1,057 1 10765

Charged in the year [+]] - 15 1551 157 2

At 30 June 2014 32 10 173 12122 41,2337

Net book value

At 30 June 2014 as o8 58 1,858 6 1,888.8

At 30 June 2013 20 - 73 20087 20180

Development costs 1n respect of products and services that are being developed by the Group are being capitalised n
accordance with SSAP 13 These are amortised over their expected useful ife once the product or service has been

commaercially launched

Purchased goodwill arose In tha year on the acquisition of Capablue Limited (see page 42)

The Company has no intangible assets (2013 £mil)
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11 Intangible assets (continued)

Acquisition of Capablue Limited

On 5 February 2014 the Group acquired 100% of the issued share capial of Capablue Limited for cash consideration
The farr value of the total consideration was £3 2m The principal actwity of the subsidiary acquired is the development of
connectvity platforms

Disclosure of the impact of the acquisition on the results and cash flow are not made on the grounds of matenabty

The fair value of assets and Labllittes acguired is as follows

Boak value Adjustments Fair value

£&m €m £'m

Fixed assels 03 - 03
Deblors 01 - 01
Cash 01 - b1
Creditors (0 3} - 0y
Net assets acquired 02 - 02
Goodwill 30
Cash consideration 31
Acguisitton fees ¢
Total consideration a2

The bock values of the assets and habiliies have been taken from the accounts as at acquisiton, and there were no
subsequent matenal farr value adjustments
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12 Tangible assets

Group Freehold land Leasshold Plant and Asnsts under the Total
snd bulldings bulldings squipment coures of
construction
{AUC)
E'm £'m E'm £m £'m
Cost
At 1 July 2013° 3133 1323 14887 193 0 21273
Acquistions - - 03 - 03
Additions 15 - 180 1843 1838
GCompletion of AUC 107 64 2045 (221 6} -
Disposala (83) (0 &) (327) - (41 6)
At 30 June 2014 3172 4381 1,678 8 1357 2,269 68
Accumulated depreciation
At t July 2013" 16 2 M8 4179 - 469 0
Charge for the year 54 48 1124 - 1226
Disposals (39 (@5 27 7) - (32 1)
At 30 June 2014 17.7 P92 60286 - 559 5
Net book valug
At 30 June 2014 2095 989 11762 1357 1,703
Al 30 June 2013° 2971 gra 10708 1930 1,658 3

*Opening balances have been restated for reclassifications between categanes as part of our continuing review of the Group & assel
base These reciassdications have no impact on the lotal cost, eccumulated depreciatian or net book value as previously reported

The Group s fixed and other assets have been pledged as secunty under the terms of the Group’s external debt faciites

(see note 26)

There were no borrowing costs capitalised dunng the year ended 30 June 2014 Bormowing costs relating to the DSO
project were capitalised dunng the year ended 30 June 2013 of £0 2m at a capitalisation rate of 3 5% The aggregate
amount of finance costs included in the cost of tang:ble fixed assels totals £20 5m (2013 £20 5m)

Plant and equipment addiions Include £0 3m relating to the acquisition of assels as part of the purchase of Capablue

Limsed (see note 11)

Freehold land included above but not deprec:ated amounts 1o £179 Om (2013 £178 5m)

Assets held under finance leases, capitaised and included within fixed assets are shown in the table below

Lang and bulldings

&'m
Cost
At 1 July 2013 and 30 June 2014 109
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 July 2013 (33)
Charge for the year {0 5)
At 10 June 2014 {3 8)
Not book value
At 30 June 2014 7.1
At 30 June 2013 76
The Company has no tangible fixed assets (2013 ni)

4Q
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13 iInvestments

The Company has {aken the exemption provided by section 410 of the Companies Act 2008 to disclose only the

mvestments deemed to be matenally significant These (held indirectly unless stated) are shown below

Percentage of

Company In?:gr:;:'yal?;n Principal activities Year end sr?;ﬂ:ﬂrzm

Argiva Finanaing No 3 Plc - held directly United Kingdom Holding company 30-fun 99 59%
Argiva Broadcast Parant Limited United Kingdom Holding cempany 30-Jun 100%
Arqiva Braadcast Finance Plc United Kingdom Fmancing vehicle 30-Jun 100%
Arqive Financing No 2 Limited United Kingdom Holding company 30-Jun 100%
Amiva Broadcast Intermediate Limited United Kingdom Holding company 30-Jun 100%
Argiva Group Parent Limited United Kingdom Holding company 30-Jun 100%
Arqiva Group Intermediate Limited United Kingdom Holding company 30-Jun 100%
Arqiva Senior Finance Limited United Kingdom Financing vehicle 30-Juns 100%
Argiva Financing Plc United Kingdom Financing vehicle 30-Jun 100%
Argiva Financing No 1 Limited United Kingdom Holding company 30-Jun 100%
Argiva PP Financing Plc United Kingdom Financing vehicle 30-Jun 100%
Arqiva Group Holdings Limited United Kingdorn Holding company 30-Jun 100%
Arqiva UK Broadcast Holdings Limited United Kingdom Holding company 30-Jun 100%
ABHL Digital Limited United Kingdom Halding company 30-dun 100%
ABHL Digltal Radio Limited United Kingdom Halding company 30-Jun 100%
Arqiva Limited Unuited Kingdam Transmission services 30-Jun 100%
Argiva Smart Metering Limited United Kingdom S:r‘::“ﬂf::llggs 30-Jun 100%
Amiva Sman Finarcing Limded United Kingdaom Financing vehicle 30-dun 100%
Arqiva tnc UsA Satelite iransmission services 30-Jun 100%
Arqiva SRL Haly Satellite transmission services 30-Jun 100%
Arqiva SAS France Satellde transmission services 30-Jun 100%
Argwva Pte Limited Singapore Satelite ransmission services 30-Jun 100%
Argiva Asta Limited Hong Kong Satellte lransmission services 30-Jun 100%
Arqiva [nternational Holdings Limited United Kingdom Halding company 30-Jun 100%
Arqiva Telecoms Investment Lumited United Kingdom Holdmg company 30-Jun 100%
Arqiva Holdings Limited United Kingdom Holding company 30-Jun 100%
Arqlva Services Limited United Kingdom Transmission services 30-Jun 100%
Argiva No 2 Limited United Kingdom Transmissian services 30-Jun 100%
Argiva No 3 Limuted United Kingdom Transmission services 3G-Jun 100%
fe Tascomrunenon S Unesscngdom  oecemumeatons
Arqiva Aenal Siles Limited United Kingdom Management of aenal sies 30-Jun 100%
Cennect TV Limded United Kingdom Transmisslon services 30-Jun 100%
Spectrum Interactive Limited United Kingdom Heolding company 30-Jun 100%
Arqiva WiFi Limited United Kingdom WiFI services 30-Jun 100%
NWP Street Limited Unided Kingdom WiFi services A0-Jun 100%
Salacive Madia Limited United Kingdom WiFI services ab-Jun 100%
Digital One Limded Unded Kingdom Transmuss|on services 30-Jun 100%
Now Digital Limied United Kingdorn Transmussion services 30-Jun t00%
Now Digitsl (Southern) Limited United Kingdom Transmission sarvices 30-Jun 100%
Now Digral {East Midlands) Limited United Kingdam Transmussion services 30-Jun 52 50%
South West Digital Radio Limited Unitad Kingdom Transmission services 3a0-Jun 66 B7%

* The Company changed its name from Lattica Telecommunications Asset Development Company Limited to Argva

Telecommurnscations Asset Development Company Limited on 17 January 2014
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13 Investments (continued)

Parcaentage of
Company i "iggu;;; n Principal activities Year end ordinary
shares held
Joint ventures
Ars Alliance Media Investment Limited British Virgin Islands Digital emema distnbution 30-Jun 24 99%
United Kingdom Open source IPTV 31-Mar 14 30%
YouView TV Limited development
Associate undertakings
Muxco Limited United Kingdom Bigding for UK DAB digital 31-Dec 25%
radio muttiplex licences

DTV Services Limited United Kingdom Freeview market services 31-May 20%

for the year ended 30 June 2014 in accordance with section 479A of the Companies Act 2006 As the ultimate parent

/ The following companies within the Group will adopt the Depariment for Business, innovation and Skills audit exemption
company, ABHL will guarantee the varnous debis and labilites held within these companies as required under the

Companies Act 2006
Company Company
registration number
Argiva Group Irtermediate Limited 8126989
Armqiva Group Holdings Limited 8221064
Argiva UK Broadcast Holdings Lunited 5254048
Argiva Telecoms Investment Limded 3656564
JFMG Limited 3297317
Argiva Mobile TV Limited 4107732
Argiva Public Safety Limited 3341257
Aenzl UK Limited 23335949
Primrose No 1 Limited 07046887
Amiva Scotland Limted SC3e5509
Arqiva Aerial Sries Limited 1460772
ABHL Digrtal Limited 3538787
ABHL. Digital Radio Limited 3573732
Digital One Limited 3537636
Now Digital Limtted 3546921
Now Digital (Oxford) Limited 5314242
Now Digital (Southern) Limited 3654065
Connact TV Limited 07403839
Arqiva Financing No 2 Limited” 06137899
Arqiva International Holdings Limited*® 08753024
Arqiva No 2 Limited* 03922958
Argiva No 3 Limited* 02973983
Argiva Smart Holdings Limited* 08723422
Argiva Smart Parent Lmited* 08723419
Arqiva WiF) Limited” 04414701
Capablue Limited® 08962172
NWP Spectrum Holdings Limited” 04412123
|/ NWP Street Limited* 04413822
Selective Media Limited* 06579687
Spectrum Interactive Liruted® 04440500

*Exemphion filed for the first ime for the year ended 30 June 2014
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13 Investments {continued)

Group Invastments in Invastment In Tota!

assoclates and financial

Jolnt ventures Instruments
€'m £'m E'm

Investments

At 1 July 2013 118 30 148
Share of retained profit 11 . 11
At 30 June 2014 129 30 159

Provision for impairment
At 1 July 2013 and 30 June 2014 - (3 0} (30)

Accumulated amortisation

At 1 July 2013 18 - 18
Charged i the year 05 - 05
At 30 June 2014 21 - 23

Net book value

At 30 June 2014 106 - 106
At 30 June 2013 100 - 100

The Durectors believe that the carrying values of the investments are supported by the underlying trade and net assets

Company Investments In Investmant In Total

subsidiares financlal

Instruments
£'m &m £'m

Cost

At 1 July 2013 1,767 0 30 1,770 0
Additiens - - -
At 30 June 2014 1,767.0 30 1,770 0

Provision for Impalrment

At 1 July 2013 and 30 June 2014 - (30) 30)

Net book value

At 30 June 2014 1,767 0 . 1,767 0
At 30 June 2013 1,767 0 - 1,767 0
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14 Debtors
Group Group Compeny Company
30 June 2014 30 Juns 2013 30 June 2014 30 June 2013
£'m E'm Em £'m
Trade debtors 743 898 - -
Amounts owad by Group undertakings - - 18 18
Amounts owed by joinl ventures (note 28) 03 01 - -
Other debtors 134 75 . -
Prepayments and accrued income 1250 1220 - -
Defarrad tax asset 566 B2 - -
Total debtors 2698 254.8 18 18

Included within prepayments 1s £12 1m (2013 £16 6m) relating to arrangement fees on undrawn faciliies

The Drrectors consider that the fair value of deblors closely appraximates to book value

Deforred tax asset Group Group
30 June 2014 30 June 2013

Azset Aassl

£'m £m

At 1 July 352 166
Credited to the profit and loss account 214 177
On acquisttion - 09
At 30 June 566 a52
Accelerated capilal allowances 527 295
Short term timing differences 06 06
Tax logses 33 51
Deferred tax assot 588 352

The deferred tax asse! of £56 6m has been calculated based on the UK carporation tax rate of 20% (the rate
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date)

There 1s an unrecegnised deferred tax assel of £28 7m (2013 £31 0m) In respect of tax losses which are not anbicipated
fo be utitsed in the foreseaable future This unrecogrused deferred tax asset 1s anticipated to be uvtiised when there i1s
taxable income In the retevant Group enttres to utihse the losses previously generated The recognised deferred tax
asset 1s forecast to be utlised against future taxable profits forecast te anse in the Group

Finance |eases
Included within *other debtors” are the following amounts receivable under finance lsases

Groug Group
30 Juns 2014 30 June 2013
£m £'m

Net invesiment in finance leases and hire purchase contracts comprises
Tolal amounts recelvable 47 52
Less Interest allocated to future years (7n (20)
Total finance laases 30 a2

Rentals recevable dunng the year under finance leases and hire purchase contracts amount to £0 4m (2013 £0 4m}

Company
Amounts owed by Group undertakings are unsecured Interest has been charged on £1 8m at 0% (2013 £1 8m al 0%)
Of the above balances, £1 8m s in respec! of amounts due in greater than one year (2013 £1 8m at 0%)
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15 Cash at bank and in hand

Group Group Company Company

30 June 2014 30 June 2013 30 June 2014 30 June 2013

£m E'm £m £m

Cash at bank 179 126 01 -
Short tarm depesits 510 107 9 - -
Cash at bank and In hand 689 1205 o1 -
Restricted cash 285 285 - -
Total cash at bank and in hand 97 4 1480 01 -

The restacted cash balance relates lo a reserve account required to cover one semi annual interest payment on the
£600 Om of juntor bonds due in 2020

16 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Group Group Company Compary

30 June 2014 20 June 2013 30 Jurie 2014 30 June 2013

E'm £m E'm E'm

Trade creditors 775 684 . -

Other taxes and social secunty costs 156 152 . -

Other creditors 113 93 - -

Pramium on swap issuantce 21 - - -
Accrued mlerest on shareholder loan notes 5130 2975 -

Accruals and defsrred income 2840 2913 01 -

Accrued hability en inflation rate swaps 599 - - -

Finance lease obligations 03 05 - -

Tolal craditors amounts falling due within one year 707 8822 o1 -

The Directors consider that the fair value of creditors. amounts falling due within one year closely approximates to book
value

The shareholder loan notes carry a fixed rale of interest ranging between 13% and 14% which can be deferred at the
option of the Group, applicable to the capital and un-paid interest The Group has exercised this option to defer interest
payments since June 2009

Accrued habiliies on inflation rate swaps fall payable on 30 June 2015 and therefore represent an amount due within cne
year as at 30 Jjune 2014 At 30 June 2015 this accrued hability wall therefore be settled Subsequent accrued hiabllifies
will be payable on 30 June 2018 and will therefare be shown with amounts falling due after mare than one yaar
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17 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

Group Graup
30 June 2014 30 June 2012
m £m

Bank loans
Senior debt 1024 0 1,185 0
Premlum on swap 1ssuancs 845 -
Accrued lianlty on inflation rate swap . 202
Less issue costs (14 2) (317)
1,104 3 1,174 5

Other loans
Senior bonds 13125 1,148 5
Junror bonds 6000 600 0
Less Issue cos!s (28 5) (31 8)
Deferred denvalive close out costs (85 §) (95 0)
1,798 5 16217
Shareholde! loan notes 1,2738 12738
Other creditors 02 12
Accruals and deferred income 107 1 1162
Finance lease obligations 137 140
Total creditors amounts falling due sftar more than one year 4,297 6 4,201 5

Maturity of loans

The total loans analysed below represent total credilors amounts falling due after more than one year before issue
costs, deferred denvative close out costs, aceruals and deferred income, and other credstors, but including finance lease
obligations and premiumn on swap tssuance falling due within one year (see note 16)

Group Group

30 June 2014 30 June 2043

rm £'m

Within one year 6923 05

In more than one year, but not more than five yaars 7372 1,2077

In more than five years 3.5813 30349

Total ioans 43878 4,243 1

Finance leases

Future minimum payments under finance leases are as follows

Group Group

30 June 2014 3¢ June 2013

em Em

Within one year t3 13}

In more than cne year, but not more than five years 56 55

After five years 178 193

Total gross payments 248 264

Less finance charges included above {10 8) {119

Total finance leases 140 1486
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17 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year (continued)

Bank ioans and other loans

In February 2013, the Group closed its refinancing ralsing funds from both bank facifities and bond markets These
funds together with further funds advanced by the ABHL shareholders faclitated the repayment of previous bank
faciites Since refinancing, the Group has adopted a strategy in relafron to its senior debt of refinancing the 3-year and
S-year term faciiles with a variety of longer term loans and bonds At 30 June 2013 the Group had serior bank loans
comprising £400 Om 3-year term faciihes and £786 Om 8-year term facilites

During January 2014, the Group completed a £180 Om term loan from institutional investors, the proceeds of which were
used to make a £180 Om par repayment of the 3-year term bank facilites This loan has an expected term of 10 years
and s held by AF1

In February 2014, the Group closed a £164 Om fixed rate publc bond issue, with an expected matunty of 2030 Net
proceeds (£162 5m) from the 1ssuance were again used to repay a portion of the 3-year term bank faciity borrowed by
ASF

Dunng June 2014, the Group completed a loan of £190 Om from the EIB borrowed by AF 1, with an expected term of 10
years The proceeds of this loan have been utihsed to seltle the remaining £57 5m of the 3-year term bank faciity and
£132 5m to make a part repayment of the 5-year term bank facilites

The 3-year and 5-year senior bank debt represents amounts borrowed by ASF under a Senior Faciity Agreement The 3-
year faciity was fully repaid in {he year and n relation ta the 5-year facility £653 5m was outstanding at 30 June 2014
The loans have floating interest rates which range between LIBOR + 225% to LIBOR + 400% by the end of the
agreement AF1 has further undrawn facilities of £700 O0m available

Subsequent to the year end, the Group concluded a new 15-year amortising US Private Placement debt issue which has
ratsed £300 Om at a coupon of LIBOR + 2 1% to be used to further pay down the remaining 5-year facility to a balance of
E353 5m

Semor bonds include the 1ssuance of £750 Om Notes raised in February 2013 and £184 Om Notes raised in February
2014 by Argiva Financing Plc {'AF') are rated BBB by Standard & Poors and Fitch These Notes have fixed interest rates
which range between 4 04% and S 34% and are repayable between June 2020 and December 2032 These Notes are
listed on the London Market

The remaining senor bonds were raised on 27 June 2013 by Arqiva PP Financing Plc (APPF’) through a2 US Pnvate
Placement transaction raising £398 5m in a combined sterling and US dollar denominated offanng These Notes have
fixed interest rates which range between 4 101% and 4 420% and have amorlising repayment profiles commencing
December 2018 with an end matunty date of June 2025

All jumor bonds of £600 Om represent amounts raised from the issuance of Notes by Arqiva Broadcast Finance Pic
{ABF’) Thase Notes have a fixed interest rate of 9 5% and are repayable in March 2020 These Notes are listed on the
Luxembourg Market

All of these financing instruments have covenants attached, principally an interest cover ratio and a debt leverage rato,
and benefit from secunty over substantially all of the Group's assets under a Whole Business Secuntisation
structure  The Group continues to camply with all covenant requirements

In December 2013, as part of the Group's new smar metering cantract we established two furiher faciities in Arqiva
Smart Financing Limited (‘'ASFL"), a Group company that sits outside the main WBS financing Group The Comms Hub
Receivables Purchasing (‘CHuURP") facility allows the Group to borrow up to £30 Om, the Fee Faciity allows the Group to
borrow up to £1 6m At 30 June 2014 a balance of £0 5m has been drawn against the fee facility, this loan has floating
interest rates of LIBOR + 1 20% and 1s fully repayable on 30 June 2017 There were no drawdowns on the CHuRP
facility as at 30 June 2014, this loan has floatng interest rates which range from LIBOR + 1 20% lo LIBOR + 1 75%
dunng the imitial stx years of the faciiity, increasing to LIBOR + 2 50% at tha end of the agreement in June 2026

The deferred derivative close out costs relate to costs incurred in February 2013 on the termination of interest rate
swap instrumenls pursuant to the Group's refinancing and are deferred to reflect the economic substance of the Group's
onginal hedging strategy

The premlum on swap issuance arose on a restructunng of certain denvative financial instruments whereby the Group
terminated existing mnterest rate swaps crystalising a loss of £112 3m (note 4) and established new interest rate swaps
with a nominal valus, matunty and terms to match the new financing arrangements established in the year The
termination payment was partially funded by the £105 3m premium received from entenng into the replacement interest
rate swaps The £7 Om difference between the termination costs paid and the premium received was cash settled
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17 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year (continued)

All shareholder loan notes are unsecured, are listed on the Channel Islands Stock Exchange and are repayable
between March 2021 and March 2022, they cannot be called upon early The shareholder loan notes carry a fixed rate of
interest ranging between 13% and 14% which can be deferred at the option of the Group, appheable to the capital and
un-pad interest The Group has exercised this option to defer interest payments since June 2009 and a balance of
£513 Om (2013 £297 5m) 1s held in relation ta accrued interest (note 16)

Derivative financlal instruments
At refinancing, the Group restructured its £2,335 7m of interest rate and inflation swaps There has been some further
restructunng during the year as a result of the abave changes to the bank and other loans held by the Group

£1,023 2m of vanable rate debt 15 now hedged via three classes of mteres! rate swaps contracted by Arqiva Senior
Financa Limited ('ASF) and AF1 at an average fixed rate of 6 0286% The ASF interest rate swaps {nominal value
£853 6m) have 5 year mandatory break clauses co-lemminus with the ASF vanable rate bank debt The wnterest rate
swaps held by AF1 (combined nominal values of £370 Om) have 10 year maturity dates, co-termunus with the Institutional
Term Loan ('ITL') and EIB loans

£1.312 5m of fixed and vanable rate debt is hadged via three classes of inflatton linked swaps which fix interest al an
average rate of 2 8498% indexed with RPl In addiion, the principel amount of these swaps increases with RPI One
class of thase swaps with a nominal value of £235 Om has a 10 year mandatory break clause, whitst the remaining two
ciasses are break free The maturity date for all three classes of inflation swaps 1s Apnl 2027

AF1 has entered into £1,312 5m of floating / fixed ierest rate swaps to overlay the above RPI swaps, amending the
cash flow characteristics to align to the fixed coupon payable on the senior bonds and USPP debt In addition, AF1
entered tnto USD 358 Om of cross-currency swaps to fix the Sterling cost of future mterest and capital repayment
obligations relating to the USD tranche of the Prvate Placement at an exchange rate of 1 52

Included within creditors falling due within one year (2013 crediors falkng due afiler more than one year) an amount of
£59 9m (2013 £202m) reflectng accrued Yabilites under the inflation swaps since the refinancing This amount is
calculated on an accruals basis The remaing falr value of the interest rate, inflation and cross curmency swaps at 30
June 2014 (excluding the inflation swap accrual and the premium on swap Issuance), 15 a hability of £1,228 Om (2013
£1,412 3m) which compnses £978 5m (2013 £1,051 8m) in relation to the RPI inked swaps, £220 3m (2013 £351 8m) in
relation to the interast rate swaps, and £29 2m (2013 £8 7m) in relation to the cross cumency swap, which is not
recognised on the balance sheet In accordance with Group accounting policy and UK GAAP accounting standards This
fair value is calculated on a mark-to-market basis

The Group holds Swap Options with a tetal pnncipal value of £843 2m The oplions are exercisable at maturity (co-
terminus with the floating rate bank debt drawn n February 2013), and hedge the Group's exposure for the duration of

the intarast rate swaps to a decline in LIBOR below 1%

Subsequent 1o the year end, the Group restructured a further £300 Om notional value of interest rate swaps so thal they
are confracled by AF1 rather than ASF with matunly and terms to match the new 15-year amorlising US Privale
Placement debt 1ssue The asscoated premum was £100 Sm which fully offset the loss crystallised leaving a zero net
cash settlement, matching the breakage costs incurred on the ASF swaps that were replaced

Company
The Company has no creditors amounts faling due after more than one year (2013 nif)
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18 Provisions for liabilities and charges

Group Onsrous Decommissioning Restructurng Ramedlation Cther Tow!
contract

£m £'m £m £'m £m £'m
Al 1 July 2013 22 372 35 104 D8 541
Reteased to profit and loss account {0 5) 01 - {6 B} 03 {77
Chargad to profil and loss accounl 13 02 75 - - g0
Changes relating to movements in - 16 - - - 18
the discountad amount
Utihsed (10} (02) {7 8} (0 1) - {9 1)
At 30 June 2014 20 87 Az 35 06 ar8

The onerous contract provision relates to supplier contracts where the costs are expecied to exceed the benefits, and
anerous lease contracts where the buildings are empty but lease cosis are being incurred, The provision 1s expected to

be utihsed over the next three years

Provisions are made for decommussioming and asset at nsk casts where the Group has an obligation to rastore sites and
the cost of restoration 1s not recoverable from third paries The provision 1s 1n relation to assets of which the remaining
useful economic life ranges up to 20 years

The restructuning provision relates to the costs of a reorgamisation of Group operations which will be ulilised dunng the

next financial year

The remediation provision represents the cost of works dentified as being required across a number of the Group's sites
and I1s expected to be utilised over the next two to three years

Other provisions represent a vanety of smalter items which are expacted to be utilised over the next cne (o three years

The Company has no provisions (2013 nil)

19 Share capital

Group and Company
30 Juna 2014

Group and Company

0 June 2013

Em Em
Allotted, callad up and fully paid:
653 926 Q00 ordinary shares of £1 each 6539 6539
20 Share premium account
Group and Company
€m
At 1 July 2013 end 30 June 2014 356
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21 Profit and {088 reserve

Em
Group
At 1 July 2013 (1,820 2)
Actuarlal loss an pension scheme {see note 27} {53
Movement on deferred tax relfating to pension asset 11
Exchange adjustments offset 1n reserves (ransiation of foreign iInvestments) 02
Lass for the financial year (503 7)
At 30 Juns 2014 (2,327 9)
Em
Company
At 1 July 2013 7893
Profit for the financial year -
At 30 June 2094 79913
22 Reconciliation of movement in shareholders’ (deficit) / funds
Year andad Yazr wnded
30 Juns 2014 30 June 2013
£m £m
Group
Loss for the financial year {503 7) (304 4)
Qther racogrised gains and kssas refating to the year (4 O) {0 By
Net change in shareholders’ deficit {507 T) (305 0)
Opening sharshalders’ deficit {850 7) (545 7)
Closing sharehaolders’ deflcit {1,358 4) {850 7)
Company
Profit for the financial year - 919
Net change in shareholders’ funds - 81.8
Opening shareholders’ funds 1,768 8 1,676 6
Closing shareholdors’ funds 1,768 8 1,768 8
53
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23 Cash flow from operating activities

Reconciltation of operating profit ta net cash inflow from operating achiviies

Group Group

Year sndsd Yaar ended

36 Junp 2014 30 June 2013

em &'m

Operating profit 1179 1226
Depreciation charge 1226 1059
Amortisation charge 1577 1591
Loss on disposal of tangible fixed assels 12 19
Decreasa / (Increase} in dabtors 21 (57)
Decrease in credilors {51 7) {25 4)
Decreasms in provisions 7N (9 4)
Total net cash inflow from operating activities 3421 390

Nel cash inflow from operating activities includes cash outflows relating to exceplional items of £7 7m (2013 £25 7m)
The exceptional costs accrued at 30 June 2014 are expected to be paid within the next financial year

24 Analysis of changes in net debt

At Y July 2013 Cash llows Non-cash changes At 30 June 2014

Note £'m E'm ©m £'m

Cash al bank and In hand 15 1205 {51 B) - 6889
Laans to joint ventures 14 01 02 - 03
Debt due within one year 16 - - (69 1) {69 1)
Debt due afer one year 17 (4,070 1) 150 {121 4) (4,176 5)
Finance leases 16, 17 (14 5) 05 - {14 0y
Tatal (3,964 0} {35 9) {190 5) (4,190 &)

Debt due after one year compnses bank loans, other loans, and shareholder loan notes as shown within note 17

Major non-cash changes mclude recogrition of excephional financing costs in relation to breaking interest rate swaps, an
increase in accrued liability on inflation rate swaps, and a movement in unamortised debt 1ssue costs Also included is the
reclassification of accrued liabilty on inflation rate swaps from debt due after ane year (per note 17) to debt due within
one year (per note 16}
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25 Commitments for expenditure

Capital commitments

Commitments for the acquisiton of plant and equipment contracted for at the reporiing date but not recognised as a
hability are payable as follows

I0 June 2014 30 June 2013

£'m £'m

Within one year 37 198
Within two to five years 107 -
Total capital commitmants 44 4 198

Commitments due within one year include £17 5m in relation to the Smart Metering contract (2013 £nil) Commilments
due within two to five years include £9 5m in relation to the Smart Metering cantract (2013 £mil)

Operating teases

Annual commitments in relation to non-cancellable operating leases for land, bulldmgs and other infrastructure locations
expiing

30 June 2014 30 Juns 2013

om em

Within ona year 05 o4
Later than one year but nol later than five years 78 75
Later than five years 148 1486
Total land, buildings and other infrastructure locations annual lease commitments 229 228

The annual commitmants above exclude amounts relating to contingent rentals, cancellable leases and leases which
have expired therr mitial term and now operate on a rolling notice period of less than one year Accordingly, the annual
lease expense seen In note 3 1s greater than the commitment shown above

Other annual lease commitments expinng

30 Juns 2014 3¢ June 2013

E'm £'m

Within one yaar 04 07
Later than one year but not later than five yaars 09 0a
Total other annual eage commitments 13 15

26 Contingent liabilities

Under the terms of the Group's external debt faciities, the Group has provided secunty over substantally all of its fixed
and other assets by way of a Whole Busmess Secunbisabon structure
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27 Pension commitments

Defined benefit scheme

In the year to 30 June 2014, the Group operated one defined benefit scheme, sponsored by Argiva Limited The assets of
the scheme are held separately from those of Arqiva Limited in trustea admirustered funds

Triennial valuation

The Inennial valuation of the Group's defined benefit pension obligations as at 30 June 2011, for actuana! funding
purposes, had resulted 0 an assessed defict of £17 4m Gross plan habilities at the valuation dale were £130 5m
compared 10 gross plan assets of £113 Tm Argqwva Limited has agreed with the trustee to make deficil recovery payments
tnto the Plan dunng 2013 (E5 7m) and 2014 (£5 7m), with ona further payment due of £4 1m i July 2015 A new tnennial
vatuation will be prepared as at 30 June 2014 in the coming months

FRS 17 assumptions

The assumptions used for the scheme for the purpose of the FRS 17 accounting position as at the year end are sel out
below, along with the fair value of assets, a breakdown of the asseats into the main asset classes, the present value of the
FRS 17 liabilities and the deficit / surplus of assets below / above the FRS 17 labilities (which equals the gross penslon
habilty / asset)

An actuanal valuation for the purposa of statutory reporting under £RS 17 was carried out at 30 June 2014 in consultation
with an indapendent firm of consulting actuaries, Lane Clark & Peacock LLP The principal assumptions made are

30 June 2014 30 June 2013
Price inflation (RP1) 330% 3 40%
Price inflation (CPI) 230% 240%
Discount rate 4 40% 480%
Pension increases (LPI with 8 mimmum of 3%} 370% 370%
Salary growth 2 80% 340%
Life expectancy of a male age 60 (curreni pensioner) 26 Byrs 26 Tyrs
Life expectancy of a male age 60 (future pansioner) 28 4yrs 28 3yrs

As required by FRS 17 'Retirement benefils’, the value of the defined benefit habidities has been measured using the
projected unit method

Asset distnibution and long term rate of return expected

30 Juns 2014 30 Juna 2044 30 June 2013 30 June 2013
Expected retum Fairvatue  Expacted retum Falr value
&m 'm
Equlties 7 20% 751 7 30% 800
Bonds 380% 93 4 395% 661
Cash 0 50% 58 050% 10
Total 174 4 1471
Balance shest
Total fair value of assets 174 4 1471
Present value of scheme liabilties (169 7) (150 1)
Gross pension asset/(hatiiity) 47 390
Deferred tax (labllity)/asset {09 07
Net pension asset/{liability) 38 23

Deficit contnbutions of £5 7m received on 30 June 2014 were held as cash at the year end and had not been invested in
portfalio funds Thus investment process was completed in July 2014
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27 Pension commitments (continued)

No amounts within the fair value of the arangements are in respect of the Company's own financial instruments or any
property occupied by, or assets used by, the Group

A higher long term rate of return i1s expected on equity mvestments than that which is available on bonds The extent to
which equities are assumed te provide higher returns than bonds In the fulure is estimated based an the returns achreved
above bond returns histoncally and market conditons at the balance sheet date

Asqiva Limited pays contnbutions of beiween 24 1% and 32 7% of penstonable salaries for the majonty of the 351 active
members of the scheme as et the last tneama) valuaticn date, plus the cost of matching Additional Veluntary
Contnbutions (AVCs')

The present value of the scheme habillies has moved over the year as follows

Yaar andsd Yaar snded

30 June 2014 30 June 2013

E'm €'m

1 July 1501 1313

Current service costs 46 47

Settiernents - 08

Contributions by emiployees 13 17

Interest cost 73 63

Benefits pad (28) 2 5)

Actuanal loss 82 80

30 June 1697 160 1

The farr value of the scheme assels has moved over the year as follows

Year ended Year andad

30 June 2014 20 June 2013

L'm (2]

1 July 147 1 1283

Expected raturn on scheme assels Ba 67

Actuanal gain 3s 75

Contnbutions by employer 161 54

Cantributions by employaeas 13 17

Benefits paid (28) (2 5)

30 June 174 4 1471
The post retirerment defict under FRS 17 moved aver the year as follows

Yaar andsd Year snded

30 June 2014 30 June 2013

£m E'm

Deficit at 1 July 30) (30

Current service costs (4 6) 47

Setilements - {0 B)

Contnbutions 161 54

Other net finance income 15 04

Actuanal loss 53 (0 5)

Surplus/(Deficit) at 30 June a7 (30)
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27 Pension commitments (continued)

The following amounis have been included within operating profit

Year ended Year snded

10 June 2014 0 June 2013

£m E'm

Current sefvices cost (employer only) 46 47

Settlements . 06

Total operating charge 45 53
The following amounts have been included as net finance Income under FRS 17

Year snded Yust ended

30 Juns 2044 30 Juna 2013

em £'m

Expected return on penswon scheme assets Lx:} 67

Interest on post retiremant liabrities {73) (63)

Net finance income 1§ 04

The actual retum on scheme assels was a gain of £12 7m (2013 £14 2m)

The fallawing amounts have been recogrised within the statement of group total recognised gains and losses (STRGL')

under FRS 17

Yaar endsd Year andad

30 Juns 2014 30 June 2093

Em £m

Actua! return less expected return on scheme assels 39 75
Lossas due to changes in assumptions underlying the FRS 17 value of scheme habilitles {92) (8 0)
Actuarlal loss recognised in the STRGL 53 {0 5)

The cumulative amount of actuanal gains and losses recognised in the STRGL is a loss of £20 8m (2013  £15 5m)

The history of experience gains and losses i1s

2014 2043 2012 2011 2010

Em £'m £m £m £€m

Present value of scheme fiabliities (1697 {150 1} {131 3) {109 5) {101 8}
Fair value of scheme assels 174 4 1471 1283 131 895
Surplus/(Deficit) on scheme 47 {3 0) (30} 36 {12 3)
Actual return less expacted retum on scheme asssis 38 75 {3 3) 106 76
Percentage cf Scheme's assets 2% 5% {(A%) 9% 9%
Experience gatns arising on scheme s flabilities - - 17 - -
Percentage of the FRS 17 value of the scheme's llabiities 0% 0% (1%) 0% 0%
Total amount racagrised m the STRGL {53} {0 5} (1389 125 {6 1)
Percentage of the FRS 17 value of the scheme's kabiites 3% 0% 1% (11%) 6%
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27 Pension commitments (continued)

The scheme 1s closed to new entrants and under the melhod used o calculate pension costs in accordance with FRS 17,
the cost as a percenlage of covered pensionable payroll will tend to increase as the average age of the membership
increases

Other penston schemes

Arava Limited

Argiva Limited has operated a defined contribution scheme during the year, for those employees who are not members
of the Defined Benefit scheme described sbove Contributions payable in respect of this scheme for the year were £5 4m
{2013 £4 6m) The assets of the scheme are held outside of the Group

An amount of £1 Om (2013, £0 7m) is included m aceruals being the outstanding contnbutions to the defined contribution
scheme

28 Related party disclosures

On a consalidated basls, fransactions and balances between Group entiies have been eliminated in full and are therefore
not disclosed in accordance with FRS 8 ‘Relatad party disclosures’

The Company has taken advantage of the exemptions available under FRS B for disciosure of transactions with entilies
that are part of the Group as related parties in these financial statements The only Company related parly transaction
that 15 nol exempt from disclosura was the intercompany debtor balance with Asqiva Financing No 3 Plc (AF3') which was
elimmated upen refinancing i the prior year There was na further interest charged during the year (2013 £73 8m)

Related party transactions

As at 30 June 2014, the amount cutstanding from Arls Allance Media Investment Limided, a joint venture company,
including accrued interest was £0 3m (2013 £01m) This balance has increased with a further loan advanced dunng the
year Interest charged dunng the year was £22,000 at 12% (2013 £5,000 at 12%)

In 2014 the Group received a dwidend from MXR Holdings Limited, a Company n which the Group has a trade
investment, of E0 im (2013 £0 1m) and a dividend fram YouView TV Limited, 8 joint venture company, of £0 3m (2013
£mily

The Group paid subscriptions of £3 Om (2013 £2 8m) to DTV Services Limited, an associale undertaking, and £3 4m
{2013 £4 3m) to YouView TV Limited, a jont venture

There are two inveslor companies, FICAL and MEIF |1, which are related parties with the Group in accordance with FRS
8. by virtue of significant shareholding in the Group Refer to the Diectors Report for {urther detals of these investor
companies

2014 MGIF U * MEIF £} + Macquaria FICAL +
Prism *

Em Em £m Em

Shareholder loan notes 47 3448 93 6652

Shareholder loan note interest for the year 11 548 19 1057

Accrued sharsholder loan note mterast 47 1093 61 2104

* A related party by virtuas of common mfivence
+ An investor company and a felated party by virtue of significant shareholding (as at 30 June 2014)

2013 MGIF 1 * MEIF N + Macquaria FICAL +
Prism *

Em Em £m £m

Shareholder loan notes 47 344 8 93 6652

Sharaholder loan note interast for the year 10 391 13 752

Accrued shareholder losn note interast 36 545 42 104 8

* A related party by virtue of common influence
+ An investor company and a related party by virtue of significant shareholding (as at 30 June 2013)
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29 Controlling parties

The Company 15 owned by a consortium of shareholders including Canada Pension Plan invesiment Board, Macquane
European Infrastructure Fund I, other Macquane managed funds and minonties There is no ultimate controlling party of
the Company, as defined by FRS 8

The Company is the parent company of the largest group to consolidate these financial statements
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